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Chairman’s Statement = /% ¥ =5 =

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Business Review

Property Development Business in China

With the opening of the Beijing-Tianjin Inter-City Railway, the
commuting time from Beijing to Tianjin has been shortened to less
than thirty minutes, further reflect the nation’s increasing emphasis
on the “Beijing-Tianjin Integration” strategy. Concurrently, the
Beijing-Shanghai High-Speed Railway has been officially launched
in June this year. The Beijing-Shanghai High-Speed Railway will
allow Tianjin to connect with other economic centers in China,
as well as brings it a step closer to the rest of the world. This will
accelerate the development of Tianjin as an international metropolis
and another financial center in China. During the reporting
period, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan (“Goldin Metropolitan” or
the “Project”), the Group’s flagship project in Tianjin, China
has attained significant progress as planned. The market value
of residential and commercial properties of the Project reached
approximately of HK$12,593,000,000 as at 31 March 2011.
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Goldin Metropolitan

Goldin Metropolitan is a high-end integrated development project,
with a planned gross floor area of approximately 1,890,000
square meters. It will be developed to embrace an international
central business district, luxury residential areas, high-end
shopping malls and the Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club.
The target customers of Goldin Metropolitan include multinational
corporations, senior executives stationed in Tianjin, businessmen,
people with acute demand for high-end quality residences and
local government departments. We expect Goldin Metropolitan will
become an globally-recognised integrated metropolis in Northern
China upon completion.

The Project includes three main sections — the central business
district, low-density luxury residential areas, and a Polo Club plus
hotels.

. Central Business District
The Central Business District includes Goldin Finance 117, the
administration building, the finance headquarters building, the
twin towers office buildings, corporate headquarters building,
shopping complex, cultural and recreational facilities, the
international convention and exhibition centre, special boutique
hotels and serviced apartments.

Goldin Finance 117 is the centerpiece of the Project. It boasts
a unique facade designed by an internationally acclaimed
architecture firm. Goldin Finance 117 is expected to be about
600 meters tall with a total of 117 floors and is set to become
one of China’s landmark skyscrapers. Goldin Finance 117 will
be équipped with Grade-A international-standard offices and

tenancy profile, our Grade-A offices are set to be
vhere international enterprises and elites converge.
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Low Density Luxury Residential Zone - “Fortune Heights”
To align with the overall development of Goldin Metropolitan
and its ancillary facilities, “Fortune Heights” residential project is
designed to provide luxury homes to overseas senior executives
in pursuit of a high living standard in Tianjin, as well as adjacent
areas such as Beijing. Each property is one-of-a-kind in terms
of size, design and landscaping, setting a new benchmark for
luxury property in Tianjin. Phase One of “Fortune Heights”
includes high-rise luxury residential buildings, low-density
luxury mansions and townhouses. Upon completion, a total of
around 700 units will be provided.

Currently, Phase One of the residential project with the planned
gross floor area of approximately 208,800 square meters is well
underway. Having fulfilled the sales requirements, it is expected
to debut whenever appropriate.

Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club

Being one of the highlights of the Project, Tianjin Goldin
Metropolitan Polo Club will introduce the traditional noble
sport of polo to the rapidly growing city of Tianjin and become
one of the largest polo clubs in China. The Polo Club, which
made a high-profile debut on 4 November 2010, commands an
area of approximately 890,000 square meters and consists of
a clubhouse, a five-star hotel, specialty restaurants, polo fields,
stables, ancillary facilities and a theme park.

Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club possesses stables
with advanced equipment and professional management
staff, ensuring the health and safety of its horses. The Polo
Club imports horses with excellent bloodlines for members’
practice and use in competitions. Various international polo
tournaments and exhibition matches have been held and will
continue to be held by the Polo Club every year, bringing
Tianjin polo to the international stage. The Polo Club also
organises various activities such as outdoor carnivals, outdoor
performances, and equestrian and polo training for children,
etc.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

BREREXTEE-[EESE]
REERRRATERBRBEERMTZR
2 EESRIETHEERABERERX
BN EBAwEMIE R EREE LR
MBIERITHRABRKZESLE  RE
REBEERENeREEE RRE
MA TRETENHER - [EBSIR]E
—HERSBREATAE EBERE
EERBHERECAEER LBRHED
700 &= £ B fiz -

BERE -—HEENFaeEEmEEY
208,800 F 5 K- HEERIEF - X E Al
WEKRME RARNEENRERERRAHEE-

AERTEBRERE
FERDEBRBREARBEEN — AR
- EENERTDIASRERNK
ECMRERTBEBEERENRFRAEER
ERARENSRgr— - BHRER=Z
—ZEZF+-AUNAEAHEE FHHEE
HREZBE: B g (hi £9890,000F 75
K BEEREeeM AERBE FB6
ER BB BR-WBISERREE
N

ARERTDERSHERALENTRR
B HBEXEBRAERBESC BERRE
Mzz -AK RER-ZERSREDHE
Bl \ERNGENSCHEEMRB ML
BE-SHREEFRENRZABARMESRE
EMREE BREFREDHLERHF
E-RIMEERPIHNEFE EIRE
A RESFMEFRIRSE -

SIRMEZERAR AR F3, 2011




W

21|

B

The Polo Club clubhouse, designed in European style, houses
an indoor swimming pool, spa, gymnasium, wine and cigar
bars, Chinese and Western dining facilities, equestrian and polo
equipment stores, etc. The Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Hotel,
on the other hand, boasts the largest column-free single-storey
ballroom (with an area of 1,534 square meters) in Tianjin
Binhai Hi-Tech Park. On 5 November 2010, “Miss Chinese
International Pageant 2010” was successfully held in this grand
ballroom.

Managed by a distinguished and professional international
management team, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club
is home to a series of international polo tournaments and
events, such as the first snow polo tournament in Asia and the
Goldin Gold Cup polo tournament. Looking into the future,
the Polo Club will be hosting the Ambassador’s Cup in autumn
2011 and a multinational snow polo tournament in 2012. It is
anticipated that these events, at the same time promoting the
sport in China, will bring Chinese polo to the global arena.
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Professional Management Team

The Group is continually improving its resources development to
attract new talents and enhancing its professional management
team. The team comprises experienced professionals in the property
industry with the disciplines of project planning, construction,
engineering, property management, marketing and sales as well as
Polo Club and hotel operations and management. The distinguished
team is committed to delivering excellent service and building an
outstanding brand name in the industry. With the completion of
Goldin Metropolitan and the provision of high-quality services,
the “Goldin” brand will secure its position in China’s real estate
industry.

Prospects

Outlook

The austerity measures launched by the central and local
governments resulting in an inevitable impact on China’s property
market to some extent. However, given the ongoing urbanization
process and the continuous increase in national income, the
demand for premium housing and accommodation by the PRC
domestic buyers is bound to surge. In the long run, we are still
upbeat about the prospect of China’s property market and believe
that the China’s real estate market is expected to experience a
stable growth.

Over the past few years, Tianjin has been one of the top five
cities in China in terms of gross domestic product, and has been
growing from a traditional port to a modern city with unlimited
opportunities. Driven by stable economic growth, Tianjin’s real estate
market has been steadily growing as a whole. Such upbeat business
sentiment has fueled demand for offices from start-ups, and has
further reduced the vacancy rate since the first quarter of 2011.
Meanwhile, the downtown regions will see active leasing activities
for new projects to come on the market within the next two years.
In light of the enormous demand for Grade-A office premises
from foreign enterprises, the Group is of the view that Goldin
Metropolitan will attract international institutions.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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With the smooth progress of Phase One of Goldin Metropolitan
and the expected successful launch of residential projects, along
with the commercial buildings, shopping mall, Polo Club and hotels,
it will constantly bring in considerable and steady income for the
Group. Apart from the current on-going project, the Group also
keeps exploiting new projects in regions with favourable business
opportunities and potentials for further deployments and increasing
its land reserves. The Group will continue to develop large-scale
integrated property projects and make unsparing efforts to build
the “Goldin” brand into a high-end symbol in China’s real estate
industry.

As a premier high-end property developer in China, we have full
confidence in the Group’s performance for 2011 and beyond. With
the Project gradually coming on stream, we believe we will bring
considerable returns to our shareholders.

Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year (2010: Nil).

Appreciation

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to all our shareholders and business partners for their support,
and to thank my fellow directors for their wise counsel, and all our
staff for their dedication and hard work. We shall commit our best
efforts to bring a promising future for the Group.

Pan Sutong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Results

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group recorded a net
profit of approximately HK$122,000,000 (2010: HK$930,000,000),
representing a decrease over the same period last year. The
decrease was mainly due to the diminishing in increase in fair value
of investment properties of approximately HK$1,250,000,000 when
compared with the same period last year. Significant increase in
fair value of investment properties during the year ended 31 March
2010 were mainly resulted from the application of the amendments
to HKAS 40 Investment Properties (Revised) prospectively from 1
April 2009. As the development project has yet to commence sales,
the Group recorded no turnover during the year (2010: Nil).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Working capital, bank balances and cash

The Group’s working capital as of 31 March 2011 amounted to
approximately HK$4,128,000,000 (2010: HK$1,934,000,000),
representing an increase of approximately 113% when compared
with the same period last year. This was mainly a result of the
increase in bank balances and cash as at 31 March 2011, resulting
from the issue of convertible bonds due 2014 from the Company at
the aggregate principle value of approximately HK$4,911,000,000
on 21 January 2011, with net cash proceeds of approximately
HK$2,586,000,000 after net of expenses and after set off against
the shareholder’s loan owning by the Company to Goldin Group
(Investment) Limited, which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Pan Sutong (the controlling shareholder, the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company) at US$300,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,325,000,000) carried interest at 8.5% per
annum.

The current ratio of the Group increased from 2.34 times as of 31
March 2010 to 3.82 times as of 31 March 2011.
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Convertible Bonds

On 21 January 2011, the Company issued convertible bonds
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with an aggregate principle
value of approximately HK$4,911,000,000. The convertible bonds
are unsecured, carry interest at 8% per annum and will mature on
21 January 2014. Interest is repayable semi-annually after the date
of issue of convertible bonds. The initial conversion price of HK$6
per share shall never be adjusted below HK$4.8. As at 31 March
2011, the liability component and conversion option derivative of
the convertible bonds are HK$3,888,000,000 and HK$883,000,000
respectively.

As at 31 March 2011, the aggregation of the convertible bonds
of the Company amounted to HK$6,479,000,000, representing
42.9% (2010: 17.3%) to the total assets of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in Renminbi.
Since the Group's assets are primarily Renminbi-denominated, the
expected appreciation of the yuan will positively benefit the Group.

The Group continues to exercise strict control policy and has not
engaged in any speculative trading in debt securities or financial
derivatives.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, the Company provided a
limited guarantee of HK$2,000,000 to a bank in respect of credit
facilities granted to a subsidiary. The Group had commitments
of approximately HK$1,503,000,000 (31 March 2010:
HK$1,611,000,000) as at 31 March 2011.
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Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2011, the Group employed approximately 1,018
employees (2010: approximately 203 employees). The staff
costs for the year (including directors’ emoluments) amounted
to approximately HK$249,600,000 (2010: HK$81,100,000).
The Group ensures that the remuneration of its employees are
competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance related
basis, together with reference to the remuneration benchmarks in
the industry and prevailing market conditions within the general
framework of the Group’s remuneration system.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERHRE

The Company is committed to the establishment and maintenance
of good corporate governance practices and procedures to
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance
accountability and transparency.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the year
ended 31 March 2011, the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all code provisions and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code on CG Practices”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for the following
deviations:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code on CG Practices, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual for a balance
of power and authority.

Currently, Mr. Pan Sutong is serving both as the Company’s
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. However, the Board considers
that this situation will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company. This
is because the balance of power and authority is ensured by the
operations of the Board which comprises experienced and high
caliber individuals with demonstrated integrity. Further, decisions of
the Board are made by way of majority voting. The Board believes
that this structure is conductive to strong, prompt response and
efficient management and implementation.

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code on CG Practices, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company. The Board believes that such practice will offer
stability at the Board level while at the same time, independence is
safeguarded by the necessary rotation, retirement and re-election
procedures which involves shareholders’ approval.
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Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the terms of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the financial year
ended 31 March 2011, except for a director who was in breach of
the requirement of Rule A3 of the Model Code with respect to his
dealings in the shares of the Company on the first day of the black-
out period (“BOP”) due to the miscalculation of the commencement
date of the BOP by the Company.

Board of Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wang Wuren (Vice Chairman)

Professor Huang Xiaojian

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Mr. Li Huamao

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The Directors’
biographical information is set out in the section headed “Directors’
Biographies” of this annual report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and
performance monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day
operations of the Company to the management team within the
control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition,
the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company. Further
details of these committees are set out in this report.
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Board of Directors — continued

Role and Function — continued

The Board is collectively responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which were
prepared on a going concern basis. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Also, there is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the
auditor.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group and is satisfied with the results of the review.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three Independent Non-executive
Directors. All of the Independent Non-executive Directors have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year. Additional meetings
would be arranged, if and when required. Notices of at least 14
days are given for regular Board meetings and the Company also
aims at giving reasonable notice for all other Board meetings.
Details of Directors’ attendance records during the year were as
follows:
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HESBRE SEBRHERE

Mr. Pan Sutong EE GBS AE
Mr. Wang Wuren FHECxE
Professor Huang Xiaojian HERHARK
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun AEE L LE
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TERESE
Mr. Li Huamao TEXLEE
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin mEREAE
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey TEBEE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REBRLE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIE L
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny BB RIE L
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Board Committees

Remuneration Committee

According to the Code on CG Practices, the Company
established its Remuneration Committee with a majority of the
members thereof being Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee comprises the Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Pan Sutong (also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence and Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company is responsible for
formulating and making recommendations to the Board on the
Group's remuneration policy and structure of the Directors and the
senior management.

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year and
their attendance were as follows:
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Meeting attended/Eligible to attend
HESEBRE SERERERE

Mr. Pan Sutong EEB LA
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REBRLE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIE L

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The Board considers the determination of the appointment and
removal of Directors to be the Board’s collective decision and thus
does not intend to adopt the recommended best practice of the
Code on CG Practices to set up a nomination committee.

The rules governing the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Articles. Newly appointed Directors
are required to offer themselves for re-election at the next following
general meeting (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the
next following annual general meeting (in the case of an addition
to the Board) following their appointment. All Directors (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation once every three years and are subject to re-election in
accordance with the Articles.

Details of the procedures for nominating candidates to stand for
election at the 2011 annual general meeting are set out in the
circular to shareholders sent together with this annual report.
Criteria adopted by the Board in considering the suitability of a
candidate for directorship includes his/her qualifications, experience,
expertise and knowledge as well as the requirements under the
Listing Rules.
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Board Committees — continued

Audit Committee

The Company established its Audit Committee and has formulated
its written terms of reference, which may be modified from time
to time, in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code on
CG Practices. The Audit Committee of the Company comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Chi
Kin, Lawrence (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny.

The functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal
of that auditor;

2. toreview the financial information of the Group; and

3. to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and
internal control procedures.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, two meetings
of the Audit Committee were held for, amongst other things,
considering and reviewing the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control matters and
the re-appointment of the external auditor. The Chief Financial
Officer of the Company was present at each of such meetings to
report, explain to and answer questions from the members of the
Audit Committee regarding the financial reporting procedures
and results of the internal control systems implemented by the
Company.

Details of the attendance records of the members of the Audit
Committee during the year were as follows:
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HESBRE SERHERE

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REBREE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXE L
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny B E B E
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Board Committees — continued

Remuneration of Auditor

During the financial year, fees paid/payable to the auditors of the
Group for audit services was approximately HK$3,849,000 and
for non-audit services was approximately HK$1,651,000, which
incurred fees for acting as reporting accountants and the provision
of tax services.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and
effective internal control system of the Group in order to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

During the financial year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group and considers it is adequate and
effective. The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of
concern which may affect the shareholders.

The Group will use its best endeavor to further improve the
Company'’s internal control system whenever necessary.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders including but not limited to (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board directly; (ii) printed copies of
corporate communications required under the Listing Rules; and
(iii) updated and key information on the Group is available on the
website of the Company.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 48, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Pan
is the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company, and is responsible
for the overall strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Pan has been
engaged not only in trading and manufacturing of electronic
products in the PRC, Hong Kong and the United States, but
also accumulated extensive experience in finance and property
development over the years. Mr. Pan is also the chairman and
a non-executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (Stock Code: 530).

Mr. Wang Wuren, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of the Company in August 2010,
and is responsible for the development and construction of the
Group'’s flagship project — Goldin Metropolitan. Mr. Wang holds
a professor level senior engineer qualification and is one of the
experts who has received the special award of the State Council. He
is also a registered national first-class architect and a fellow member
of The Chartered Institute of Building. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Wang was the chief architect of China State Construction
Engineering Corporation Limited, and one of his notable
achievements was acting as the project manager of Shanghai World
Financial Center. He has over 30 years of experience in architecture,
and in the management of a variety of large to mega scaled
construction projects in the PRC and overseas. He also accumulated
extensive experience in corporate management.

Professor Huang Xiaojian, aged 49, joined the Group in 2001
and was appointed as an Executive Director in September 2006.
Professor Huang has over 20 years of experience in research and
development of electronic and digital technologies. Professor Huang
obtained a master degree in Telecommunications and Electronics
from Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications and is
a senior member of an Electronic Association in the PRC. Prior
to joining the Group, Professor Huang was a professor of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications and had worked in a
number of research organizations in the PRC. Professor Huang is
also a non-executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530).
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Executive Directors — continued

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, aged 37, joined the Group in 2006 as General
Manager of China Division, oversees the Group’s China businesses.
Mr. Zhou was appointed as an Executive Director in April 2008. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou acted as legal counsel and had held
senior management posts in various corporations in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Singapore. Mr. Zhou graduated from Dalian Maritime
University with a bachelor degree in International Maritime Law.
He accumulated extensive experience in corporate administration,
finance, legal, international trade and public relations.

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond, aged 52, was appointed as an
Executive Director in August 2008. Mr. Ting is a registered architect
of the State of California, the United States and the Architects
Registration Board of Hong Kong. He obtained a bachelor degree
in Science (Architecture) and Architecture from the University of
Southern California, and is a member of the American Institute
of Architects, the National Council of Architectural Registration
Board, the United States and the Hong Kong Institute of Architect.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ting was a director of P&T Group
Limited. He has over 26 years of experience in architecture, and in
the management and co-ordination of a variety of projects in South
East Asian region, especially the PRC and Taiwan.

Mr. Li Huamao, aged 41, was appointed as an Executive Director
in August 2010. He graduated from the business faculty of Tianjin
University with a bachelor degree in Construction Management.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was a director of Tianjin Hi-Tech
Development Company Limited, a company listed in the PRC.
Mr. Li was also a general manager of Tianjin Hi-Tech Property
Development Company Limited and a general manager of the
operating department of Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group Company
Limited. He accumulated extensive management experience in the
development and investment in real estate industry in the PRC.
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Executive Directors — continued

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin, aged 37, was appointed as an
Executive Director in August 2010. He joined the Company in
2008 and is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Wong is the general counsel of the Company and responsible
for overseeing the Group'’s legal and corporate matters. He obtained
a bachelor degree in Laws from The Manchester Metropolitan
University in the United Kingdom and was admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong and in England and Wales. Mr. Wong is also an
executive director and general counsel of Goldin Financial Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with its shares listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530). Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. Wong was a special counsel of Baker
& Mckenzie specializing in real estate mergers and acquisitions,
corporate joint ventures and public corporate compliance matters.

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey, aged 45, was appointed as an
Executive Director in March 2011. Mr. Lee is the vice chairman
of Goldin Real Estate Financial Holdings Limited, the ultimate
holding company of the Company. He is responsible for overseeing
corporate communications, investor relations and fund raising
activities of the Company. Mr. Lee is also an executive director
of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with its shares listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 530). Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Lee was a managing director of Goldman Sachs (Asia) LLC. He
has over 20 years of experience in investment banking and served
as department head of various functions including debt capital
markets, fixed income derivative structuring/marketing and China
private wealth management. He holds a bachelor degree in
Economics from University of California at Berkeley and a Master in
Business Administration degree from the Harvard University.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence, aged 75, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in November 2002. He is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Lai is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and CPA Australia, and has extensive experience in accounting and
auditing sectors.

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 46, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in February 2004 and is a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Dr. Ng has more than 20 years of experience in
professional accounting and corporate finance in Hong Kong, the
PRC, the United States, and Europe. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified
public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, and
an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Dr. Ng received her Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Juris Doctor Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong,
Master of Laws Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws from
The University of Hong Kong, Master of Business Administration
Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, and Master of
Professional Accounting Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Dr. Ng is currently an independent non-executive director
of Cheong Ming Investments Limited (Stock Code: 1196) and eSun
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 571), both being listed companies in
Hong Kong. Dr. Ng is also an independent non-executive director
of 1010 Printing Group Limited (“1010 PGL"), a subsidiary of
Recruit Holdings Limited (“RHL") (Stock Code: 550). As at the date
of this annual report, RHL has announced the proposed spin-off
and separate listing of 1010 PGL on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny, aged 58, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2004 and is
a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng
obtained a Doctor of Science Degree from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology, the United States and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada. Dr. Cheng had held management positions in various
technology companies, and was in charge of funding technology
companies when he was with the Government of Hong Kong. Dr.
Cheng is currently engaged in environmental protection projects.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Goldin Properties Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) presents the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2011 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 44.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are shown in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 132 and consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 48, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Ponies

Movements of property, plant and equipment and ponies during
the year are shown in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Investment Properties

Movements of investment properties during the year are shown in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 147.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong

Mr. Wang Wuren

Professor Huang Xiaojian

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond
Mr. Li Huamao

Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin

Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey

(appointed on 5 August 2010)

(appointed on 5 August 2010)
(appointed on 5 August 2010)
(appointed on 17 March 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

Pursuant to Article 96 of the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”), Mr. Wang Wuren, Mr. Li Huamao, Mr. Wong
Hau Yan, Helvin and Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey, being the new
Directors appointed after the 2010 annual general meeting of the
Company, will hold office only until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM") and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 105 of the Articles, Mr. Pan Sutong, Professor
Huang Xiaojian, Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence and Dr. Cheng Kwan
Wai, Sunny will retire from office at the AGM by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The term of office of each Director, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, is for a period up to his/her retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2011, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares

T -——F=A=+—H ARFAESZTEk&
AERARAKEATM A EBRCEE
FHREBAEEMNESRBAEED])EXVED
&ﬁ el et %%%¢Tﬁ@%m%&
BEBRMEXVBETIRESDEBAME AR
BTN EER AR (BEESEREE %&
HEKMNZ ZERXEREIGEAES 2 &
mime)idﬁ%$ RIIEES B E K
BIE32BETF 2 ELMANERI AR
&mfﬁﬁ#WEﬂA$“T& 6 32 BT H 1
HIARBWT ¢

==
[V-nt/[T

(@ R zER

Approximate

percentage
of the issued
Name of Director/ Long position/ Number of share capital
chief executive short position Capacity shares held of the Company
EERDBE BT
EE BRTBABHE HR/ KR 3 BEROEE REZBHBIL
(Note 1)
(BF&E1)
Mr. Pan Sutong Long position  Interests held as beneficial 845,057,341 68.43%
owner and through (Note 2)
controlled corporations
EERBE L HAE EREZERALBIE (B EE2)
FEBAZER
Professor Huang Xiaojian Long position Beneficial owner 424,210 0.03%
HERHEK HAE BREAA
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun Long position Beneficial owner 280,000 0.02%
FABRELE HE BERERA
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond  Long position Beneficial owner 600,000 0.05%
TEREE HAE BEREAA
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin Long position Beneficial owner 145,820 0.01%
=ZREE HAE BEREAA

@ Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EER R STHAERKR % - 1HEH
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures B R EREFZ2EZR KA
— continued — &
(b) Interests in convertible bonds b RABBRES 2R
(i) Interests in convertible bonds due on 28 August 2012 (i) RZE—-—FENA=-+NHEHz
ARRESZER
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the issued
Name of Director/  Long position/ underlying share capital
chief executive short position Capacity shares held of the Company
B BETBAER BEMHEE (XA AREERT
HE "R/ KR =37 RHHBE BREZBHEIL
(Note 1)
(Bt3E1)
Mr. Pan Sutong Long position  Interests held as beneficial 378,744,766 30.67%
owner and through controlled (Note 3)
corporation
EEB LA HE ERERFEEANAXREELEE (B 3E3)
FHAEZER
(i) Interests in convertible bonds due on 21 January (i) RZFE—EmWFE—-—ABA=-+—HF@H=
2014 HRRES 2 EH
Approximate
percentage
Number of the issued
Name of Director/  Long position/ of underlying share capital
chief executive short position Capacity shares held of the Company
ES BETBRAE BEMEE (HERAREERT
HE 135873} =37 ROBE BREAZBQNESL
(Note 1)
(B 3E1)
Mr. Pan Sutong Long position  Interests held through controlled 795,767,114 64.44%
corporations (Note 4)
R LA HE MXEEEFE 2 ER (Mt 5E4)
Mr. Ting Kwang Long position  Beneficial owner 275,000 0.02%
Yuan, Edmond (Note 5)
TEREE HE EafEE A (Ft5E5)
Mr. Wong Hau Yan,  Long position Beneficial owner 70,000 0.01%
Helvin (Note 6)
=ZR LA e E=n#EAA (KMt 3E6)
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
— continued

Notes:

1. Asat 31 March 2011, the number of issued share capital of the Company
was 1,234,951,832 shares.

2. Asat 31 March 2011, 106,593,000 shares were held by Mr. Pan in
his personal capacity, 659,134,341 shares were held by Goldin Group
(Investment) Limited (“Goldin Group (Investment)”), the immediate holding
company of the Company and 79,330,000 shares were held by Clear Jade
International Limited (“Clear Jade"). Clear Jade was 100% owned by Mr.
Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin Real Estate
Financial Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, which in turn was 100% owned by
Mr. Pan. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in 659,134,341
shares held by Goldin Group (Investment) and 79,330,000 shares held by
Clear Jade. Goldin Group (Investment), being a holding company of the
Company, is also an associated corporation of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

3. Asat 31 March 2011, Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) held
the convertible bonds with nominal value of HK$7,338,003 and
HK$1,318,268,679 respectively. Upon full conversion of the convertible
bonds at the conversion price of HK$3.50 per share (as adjusted on 27
August 2009), 2,096,572 shares and 376,648,194 shares will be issued
to Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) respectively. Goldin Group
(Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in
turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be
interested in the convertible bonds held by Goldin Group (Investment).

4. Asat 31 March 2011, Goldin Group (Investment) and Matsunichi
Goldbase Global (Management) Limited (“Matsunichi Goldbase Global”)
held the convertible bonds with nominal value of HK$4,684,602,684
and HK$90,000,000 respectively. Upon full conversion of the convertible
bonds at the conversion price of HK$6.00 per share, 780,767,114 shares
and 15,000,000 shares will be issued to Goldin Group (Investment) and
Matsunichi Goldbase Global respectively. Goldin Group (Investment) was
100% owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in turn was 100%
owned by Mr. Pan. Goldin Financial Holdings Limited was the ultimate
holding company of Matsunichi Goldbase Global, and Mr. Pan was also
a non-executive director, the chairman and the controlling shareholder of
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be
interested in the convertible bonds held by Goldin Group (Investment) and
Matsunichi Goldbase Global.
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RZE——F=ZA=+—HB ARARBEEHETRAHK
B 41,234,951,832 B B 19 ©

2. RZZT——F=H=+—H 106,593,000 i 1
BERENBEASTHESR 659134341 BB HHAA
REEERATSREBMREERARAERE
H (% &) ])#A - 179,330,000 8% B 19 f bE ZEIBE A
BRAR(BENEE - BREAFLEEB10% &
BEEEREBAARAGRERAR SRS @M E
ERERAFATSREEMEDEE100% @ =8
SR ER BB EEEI00% - ALt EEERER
ABEERIEEEGEE)FH 2659,134341 R R H &
MEREAH 279,330,000 B #E - 2 REEGE
BYARARIZERAR  NAZBHFRBEKME
XVEBFT RE 2 AN Al ARE A E -

3. RIE——F=ZA=+—HBH BEEERSREBRGR
&) Bl A E1E 57,338,00378 7T &% 1,318,268,679 5
TRZABRRESF BEURREFRLABRETRRKN
350BL(R=ZZFENFNA+ELALFHE)EE
YHBEE SHRRAELERRREBGRE)ET
2,096,572 fi% f% {5 %2.376,648,194 i i 15 - = iR & B (3%
B)h SRR E K AE100% @ M= R £ 82 B
HELEEAI0% Bt BEAERBAEESE
EEHEE)FBZIURRESF 2 -

4 RZF-——F=ZA=+-"B BREFB(IRE)RR

B ERK(EE)ARAATVRAESERED DA
¥ A [ B 54,684,602,684 7% 7T 190,000,000 JT 2
AR ESF EAEREFIRLBREESREH6.00
BTEZHEAR BoRlReREBAGRE)RA
B £ & 3% Bk % 17780,767,114 B% B 1 K 15,000,000 f%
B -mEEEEE HRESRMERESF100%
MeRernENHRELEEE100% - SRS R(E
EDERAAANBEERRONEKRERAR M
BEENREREMERBERAFRNIIERNITES -
ITREELERBRE-Al FLEWEAEASRSE
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
— continued

Notes:

5. Asat 31 March 2011, Mr. Ting held the convertible bonds with a nominal
value of HK$1,650,000. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds at
the conversion price of HK$6.00 per share, 275,000 shares will be issued to
Mr. Ting.

6. Asat 31 March 2011, Mr. Wong held the convertible bonds with a nominal
value of HK$420,000. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds at the
conversion price of HK$6.00 per share, 70,000 shares will be issued to Mr.
Wong.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had, as at 31 March 2011, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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6. RZF——FZA=Z+—-H EBEEBEEER
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Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders under SFO

As at 31 March 2011, the substantial shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares

RZB——F=ZA=+—8B RARRBMHK
HERDPEEREZES RHEHHEXVE
F2RFIDBOGXARAARNR A EENCH
RARRRELF R EGRIEIBCHRAEFTZ
BLMANEREAARZETERR(RNAAE
EREBITHAERINAT :

(@ R zER

Long position/

Approximate

percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of

Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held the Company

L NN

ERTREAZ

BRREE BE/ KB g4 BFERAEE BHAEDE

(Note 1)

(MF=E1)

Goldin Group (Investment) (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner 659,134,341 53.37%
SREBEGRE)(HE2) e E=mEA A

Atlantis Investment Management Long position Investment manager 110,468,000 8.95%

(Hong Kong) Limited g KEKRE

Clear Jade (Note 3) Long position Beneficial owner 79,330,000 6.42%

B2 (M :E3) e E=miEA A
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Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders under SFO — continued

(b) Interests in underlying shares

H
(]

Directors’ Report = = &

(b) B4 B B 49 2

(i) Interests in convertible bonds due on 28 August 2012 i) AZ2—=-—FENA=Z+N\HEH=

MR ES 2R

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the issued

Long position/ underlying share capital of

Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held the Company

EARRAF

BHEHE CSRITREZ

REEM BE/%RRE &4 gk §=| BABES R

(Note 1)

(B &E1)

Goldin Group (Investment) (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner 376,648,194 30.50%

SIREBGERE)(HFE2) wE EHEBEAA (Note 4)
(Kt 5E4)
(ii) Interests in convertible bonds due on 21 January (i) R—BE-mE—-—A=-+-BEH>

2014 CEYT 32 £

Approximate

percentage of

Number of the issued

Long position/ underlying share capital of

Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held the Company

LR YN

BEHERE CSRITRAEAZ

RRER wRe/ KR g % R&oHA BHBEsH

(Note 1)

(B &E1)

Goldin Group (Investment) (Note 2) Long position Beneficial owner 780,767,114 63.22%
=IREEERE) K EE2) A E=HBA (Note 5)
(Mt 5E5)
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Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders under SFO — continued

Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2011, the number of issued share capital of the Company
was 1,234,951,832 shares.

2. Asat 31 March 2011, Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by
Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan
Sutong.

3. Asat 31 March 2011, Clear Jade was 100% owned by Mr. Pan Sutong.

4. Asat 31 March 2011, Goldin Group (Investment) held the convertible bonds
with a nominal value of HK$1,318,268,679. Upon full conversion of the
convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$3.50 per share (as adjusted
on 27 August 2009), 376,648,194 shares will be issued to Goldin Group
(Investment).

5. Asat 31 March 2011, Goldin Group (Investment) held the convertible
bonds with a nominal value of HK$4,684,602,684. Upon full conversion
of the convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$6.00 per share,
780,767,114 shares will be issued to Goldin Group (Investment).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

B A

RZE——F=ZA=+—HB ARAABETRAHK
B 41,234,951,832 B B 19 ©

2. RZE-——F=A=+—RH SREBEEBE) A
R B A 100% 0 S R & B A B O &
BELEHEARI00% °

3. RZZE——F=ZA=Z+—H BRHEHKBLLH
A100% °

4, RZZE——F=ZA=+—H "REEEE)ES
HEA1,318268,679 8 w2 AJ AR EH o & AT K
BHREABESRBEMISOETL(R=2ZEZTAFN
A+ tERARERHRLBE BRSREBMIR
&) %17 376,648,194 L B 15 ©
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Share Options

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted
on 27 August 2002 by a resolution passed by the Company's
shareholders on the same date, the Directors of the Company may
grant options as incentives to any participants as described in the
Scheme for the shares in the Company within a period of ten years
commencing from 27 August 2002 at the price determined by the
Directors of the Company. Such price shall not be lower than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company. An option may be exercised within ten years from the
date of grant of the relevant option.

Directors’ Report = =& & R &

B

BEAAABRERA-_ZZE-_FNA=-_++tH
BBZAZERPRBBERNZ BRES S
([#Zat8)) A2 EEAm T _FNA
—ttBERFTEHEARAZTEEEZT
M2HEERTEREFERER  WIRAQAAE
EETZEERERARBIBRN ZEBRITEEK
RAT=ZEHzEaE : ()VAAARMRELAR
HEBZMZBETE : (RN ARAKRMREER
LRSI AEXSAEBEImZ FHKRME:
RNARRIBGOEE - RIEZTE AT E L 28
SR 2RO ERRE T SBBEAQRRK
MBEHZ10% BEREFTHEEEBREZRT
HEIRRE +FRITE-

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share option @TEREBERHZ_ZT——F=A=+—H 1t
movements during the year ended 31 March 2011: FEARABREZH 2FG:
(i) Directors () E=
Number of share options
EREHA
Subscription Appointed as
price Outstanding at a director Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Name of Director Date of grant pershare  Exercisable period 142010 during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 31.3.2011
R-B-%8% RZB--%
BA-A RER ZA=t-A
EEig RABH SRARE TRH WATE BEEAEE  EASRE  EREAR FREAX BT &
HKS (Note 1)
BT (B31)
Mr. Wang Wauren (Note 2) 10.8.2010 375 10.8.2011109.8.2020 - - 600,000 - - 600,000
TRCREME) ZE2-ZE)\ATH Z2-—-£/\fTEZ
“Z-FE)\ALA
10.8.2010 375 10.8.2012109.8.2020 - - 600,000 - - 600,000
ZZ-ZE)\ATH “Z-ZE/\fTEE
“E-RENANA
10.8.2010 375 10.8.2013t09.8.2020 - - 800,000 - - 800,000
ZE-ZENATH “E-ZENATRHE
“ECRENANA
- - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
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Share Options - continued

(i)

Directors — continued

BRE-Z
() EE-4E&

Number of share options
BYE
Subscription Appointed as
price Outstanding at a director Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Name of Director Date of grant pershare ~ Exercisable period 142010 during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 31.3.2011
R=%-%% R=F--%
mA-A RER Zh=1-1
B34 REBH ERARE TRH HAGRE BEEREE  FABRY  FABAR  FABLA BATE
HKS (Note 1)
BT (BE1)
Professor Huang Xiojian 3.8.2009 330 38.2010102.8.2019 180,000 - - (180,000) - -
] & ZEENENAZA ZE2-ZE/\AZEZ
ZZ-AENAZH
3.8.2009 330 382011t028.2019 180,000 - - - - 180,000
ZEZENENNAZH E--EJfZRE
ZE-nENAZA
38.2009 330 382012t028.2019 240,000 - - - - 240,000
“EENFNAZA “E--%#\f=RZ
“E-NENAZH
600,000 - - (180,000) - 420,000
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun 3.8.2009 330 382010t028.2019 300,000 - - - - 300,000
ABEEEE ZEENENAZA ZE-3E\AZHE
ZE-nENAZA
38.2009 330 382011t028.2019 300,000 - - - - 300,000
ZZENENAZH “E--f\fZHE
“E-NENAZH
382009 330 38201210282019 400,000 - - - - 400,000
ZEENENAZH Z5-Zf)\AZHE
ZEZ-AEN\AZH
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond ~ 3.8.2009 330 382010t028.2019 600,000 - - (600,000) - -
TERLE ZEENENAZH “E-TE\AZHE
ZZ-AE\AZR
382009 330 3820110282019 600,000 - - - - 600,000
ZEENENAZA Z5--£/\AZHE
“E-NENAZH
382009 330 3820121028209 800,000 - - - - 800,000
ZEENE/\AZR ZE2-“%£/\AZEZ
ZZ-AENAZH
2,000,000 - - (600,000 - 1,400,000
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Share Options — continued BRE-—E
Directors — continued () EE-8
Number of share options
EREHA
Subscription Appointed as
price Outstanding at a director Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Name of Director Date of grant pershare ~ Exercisable period 142010 during the year  during the year  during the year  during the year 31.3.2011
R-B-%8% R-B--%
BA-A RER ZA=t-A
EE4 REAH SRARE THE HAGRE BEEREE  FABRY  FABAR  FABLA BATE
HKS (Note 1)
AR (B3t1)
Mr. Li Huamao 382009 330 382010t028.2019 - 300,000 - - - 300,000
FEREE Z2ENENAZA ZE2-ZE/\AZEZ
ZZ-AENAZH
38.2009 330 3820110282019 - 300,000 - - - 300,000
“EEAFNAZA “E--ENAZHE
“F-NFAAZH
3.8.2009 330 3820120282019 - 400,000 - - - 400,000
ZIEAENAZH ZE-"E\AZHE
“E-NENAZH
- 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin 3.8.2009 330 38201010 282019 - 360,000 - (145,820) - 214,180
BEEEE ZEENENAZA ZE-3E/\AZHE
- 2 - n ¢ N ﬂ =
3.8.2009 330 3820110282019 - 360,000 - - - 360,000
ZZEAENAZH ZE--Ef=RE
“E-NENAZH
3.8.2009 330 382012102.82019 - 480,000 - - - 480,000
ZEENENAZH ZE-_#/\AZHEZ
“E-NENAZH
- 1,200,000 - (145,820) - 1,054,180
3,600,000 2,200,000 2,000,000 (925,820) - 6,874,180
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Share Options - continued

(i) Employees (other than Directors)

BRE-E

(i) EE(ZFESKBIMN

Number of share options
BRERE
Subscription Appointed as
price Outstanding at a director Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding at
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period 142010 during the year during the year during the year during the year 31.3.2011
R-E-8% R=g--%
MA-H RER ZA=1-H
REBH SRABE THEH HATHE BEEAES HFAERE FrETE  FABAN e
HK$ (Note 1)
BT (F&E1)
5.2.2004 120 5.2.2005104.2.2014 672,630 - - - - 672,630
—ZEME_ARA “ZTRF-AEAZE
—E-ME-AWA
20.4.2004 142 20.4.20041019.4.2014 567,783 - - - - 567,783
ZEEMEMAZTH “REMEMA-tRE
ZE-WmEMATNA
28.9.2005 1.32°28.9.2005 t0 27.9.2015 1,421,050 - - - - 1,421,050
ZERRENAZTNA ZZZRENRAZTNAE
ZZ-REANAZT LA
27.11.2007 6.56 27.11.2007 t0 26.11.2017 8,000,000 - - - - 8,000,000
“ERLET-AZTtH RRLE+-AZTtHE
~g-Ft-fo 58
3.8.2009 330 3.82010t02.8.2019 3,516,000 (660,000) - (1,130,640) (360,000) 1,365,360
“ZEAENAZH —T-TE/\A=ZHZ
—E-AENAZA
3.8.2009 330 3820110282019 3,516,000 (660,000) - - (525,000) 2,331,000
—ZENEN\A=AR ZZ-—5¥)\R=RZE
—E-NENAZA
3.8.2009 330 3.82012102.8.2019 4,688,000 (880,000) - - (700,000) 3,108,000
ZEENENAZR ZZ-Z5¥)\R=RZE
“Z-NENAZH
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.17 2142011 to 20.4.2020 - - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000
ZE-FEMAZT-A ZF--FMAZ+-RE
(Hi3£3) “E-ZEMA-TA
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 3.17 2142012 t0 20.4.2020 - - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000
2-ZEMA-+-A Z2-—EMA-+-RZE
(Mar3) ZZ-ZEMAZ+H
21.4.2010 (Note 3) 317 21.420131020.4.2020 - - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
“E-ZEMA-T-H “E-ZFMA-t-HE
(Mz3) “Z-ZFMA-+A
10.8.2010 (Note 2) 375 10.8.2011109.8.2020 - - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
“E2-ZEN\ATHME) ZZ-——5¥)\R+AZE
—ZZZE)\ANR
10.8.2010 (Note 2) 3.75 10.8.2012t09.8.2020 - - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
ZE-ZENATAME) “Z-ZE)\AtAZE
—Z-FEN\ANR
10.8.2010 (Note 2) 3.75 10.8.2013t09.8.2020 - - 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
ZE-ZENATREE) ZZ-ZENATAHE
—ZZZE/\ANA
22,381,463 (2,200,000) 19,000,000 (1,130,640) (1,585,000) 36,465,823

o
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Share Options - continued

Notes:

)

Directors’ Report = =& & R &

Each of Mr. Li and Mr. Wong was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 5 August 2010. Share options held by them were re-classified
from the category of “Employees (other than Directors)” to “Directors” on

the same date.

Share options granted on 10 August 2010 were conditionally granted to a
director and employees of the Company, subject to the achievement of the
performance targets as determined by the Board.

Share options granted on 21 April 2010 were conditionally granted to the
employees of the Company, subject to the achievement of the performance
targets as determined by the Board.

BRE-E

W 5

FEEREREDIR -_T-—ZFNALAEEE
RARFRITEF WEREWBBRENF B AlE
BEERINIEHDEE(EE]IE -

RZF-—ZF \ATERENBEBRETD A FFLE
TARAMEERER HAGEZESIMTN
=EBRF-

RIE-ZFOA-_+-HRENBREDE G
WRTFAREANER MAGEZEFEMENR
RERF-

Other participants (i) Hb2EH
Number of share options
BREYR
Subscription Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Date of grant price per share  Exercisable period 142010  during the year  during the year  during the year 31.3.2011
R=%2-2% R=B--%
A—-H =ZA=+-AH
REAH ERABE TEH HRTR ERERHE ERERR ERBXRA HRTR
HKS
AT
5.2.2004 120 5.2.2005t04.22014 2,657,875 - - - 2,657,875
—ZEME_ARA “ZTR5-RAAZE
“E2-ME-AMA
20.4.2004 142 20.4.20041019.4.2014 367,695 - - - 367,695
ZZZMEMAZTA ZZTMERAZTHE
ZZ-mEmMAtAA
3.8.2009 330 3.8.2010t02.8.2019 2,205,000 - (100,820) - 2,104,180
ZZEAFENAZH —Z-ZE)\f=AZE
“E-AENAZRA
3.8.2009 330 3.82011t02.8.2019 2,205,000 - - - 2,205,000
ZZENEN\AZH —Z-—-57\f=RZE
“E-AENAZH
3.8.2009 330 3.82012t02.8.2019 2,940,000 - - - 2,940,000
ZZEAENAZH —T-Z%)\R=ZHZ%
—E-NENAZR
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Share Options - continued

(i) Other participants — continued

BRE-E

(i) Htt2HE & &

Number of share options
BREHE
Subscription Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
Date of grant price per share Exercisable period 142010  during the year  during the year  during the year 31.3.2011
R=2-%% R=g--%
A-H =F=1+-AH
RHiAH BRABE THEH e ERERY FREE ERBAH e
HK$
BT
21.4.2010 3.17 2142011 t0 20.4.2020 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000
“2-ZEMA-+-A “2--fMA-+-RZE
“R-REMACTA
21.4.2010 3.17 2142012 t0 20.4.2020 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000
“Z2-ZEMAC-+-R E-"fMA-+-RE
ZER-ZEMAZTH
21.4.2010 3.17 2142013 t0 20.4.2020 4,800,000 - - 4,800,000
—Z-TEMA-+-A ZE-ZFMA-+-RE
“ER-REMACTA
10,375,570 12,000,000 (100,820) - 22,274,750

The vesting period of the share options under the Scheme is from
the date of grant until the commencement of the exercisable
period.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 21
April 2010 and 10 August 2010, the dates on which the share
options were granted, was HK$3.15 and HK$3.71 per share
respectively.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the share options were
exercised, was HK$4.51 per share.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and “Share Options” above, at no time
during the year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries or its
holding companies a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

During the year, the Group had transactions with related companies
in which a Director of the Company has controlling interests,
details of which are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
of the Directors of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2011, none of the Directors are considered to be in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group had no turnover
and the aggregate amount of construction costs attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers represented approximately 67 %
of the Group's total construction costs for the year. The aggregate
amount of construction costs for the year attributable to the
Group's largest supplier for the year was 29%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital, has interests in these suppliers during the
year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2011, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2011.

Management Contract

No contract for management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company was entered
into or existed during the year.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

Audit Committee

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2011 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the work of the Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2011 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who will
retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
that meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Pan Sutong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 June 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B R BETRE

Deloitte.
45

T
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS

LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldin
Properties Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to
146, which comprise the Group’s and the Company’s statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal controls as
the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report & M # 2 A 3} &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2011 and of the Group'’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 June 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
e HEWEBRRK

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &2 =—ZF——F=A=+—HLFE

2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-—FTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt FERT FHE T
Revenue W = - -
Cost of sales 5 & K AR - =
Gross profit EH - -
Other income H b Ug A 8 2,599 6,778
Administrative expenses 1THE A (389,161) (135,002)
Foreign exchange gains, net HNFE Y 25 5 5B 128,495 32,892
Finance costs B 7% & A 10 (255,853) (248,261)
Increase in fair value of investment REYHEZ A FEEM
properties 17 450,475 1,700,340
Gains on derivatives PTETAREZWH 1M 297,988 17,054
Profit before tax B X A 4 A 12 234,543 1,373,801
Income tax expense Fri3 I8 X 13 (112,619) (444,194)
Profit for the year attributable to ARG HEAEBEFEE
owners of the Company i A 121,924 929,607
Other comprehensive income HaZ2mEKA
Exchange difference arising on MEBINEBRELER
translation =5 271,179 24,733
Other comprehensive income RNEFEHEME2ERA
for the year 271,179 24,733
Total comprehensive income RAREEABLEE
for the year attributable to owners ZHEIWABEE
of the Company 393,103 954,340
Earnings (loss) per share BEREF(EE) 15
— basic —ER 9.95 HK cents  76.03 HK cents
9.95 & il 76.03 % 1L
— diluted — 8 (3.59) HK cents  70.82 HK cents

(3.59)7& 4L

70.82781L
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B EHRR

At 31 March 2011 R—E——F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—EF——-F ZE-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
hg=2 FET FHE T
Non-current assets EmBEE
Property, plant and equipment and V¥ HE REE
ponies PA K 55 T 16 2,057,203 326,607
Investment properties REME 17 6,824,650 5,762,928
Other assets HEMEE 24 340,739 =
Prepaid lease payments BT & RIEB 18 251,830 161,333
Intangible assets EmIEE 19 90 90
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEME BWE M
property, plant and equipment REBENIZS 20 41,759 -
9,516,271 6,250,958
Current assets mEE E
Inventories FE 21 30,583 -
Properties under development BRTPEFEME
for sale 23 3,059,855 2,197,345
Prepaid lease payments B E A 18 6,086 4,137
Trade and other receivables, & Hﬁl EE X R H b FE U 2k
prepayments and deposits 8 H RIENIEE 25 196,367 259,747
Amount due from a related i3 Hﬁl LI ﬂ FIE 26
company = - 178
Entrusted loan receivable FEWEALE & = 28 11,900 -
Pledged bank deposits EEMIBITER 29 _ 6,726
Bank balances and cash WITHEGT RS 29 2,287,706 585,748
5,592,497 3,053,881
Assets classified as held for sale NEEBBEELE
2B E 24 - 325,277
5,592,497 3,379,158
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables FE AR R R E A
J& 1t X I8 30 1,376,964 1,065,648
Amounts due to related companies FE ST B & A A FRIA 31 46,469 44,381
Tax payable JEHIIE 29,151 28,481
Entrusted loan payable e ZEE 28 11,900 =
Obligations under finance leases MEESES—
—amount due within one year — & () B Bf FR 18 32 68 44
1,464,552 1,138,554
Liabilities directly associated with BOBABAERE 2
assets classified as held for sale EEEEEBBNAEE 24 - 306,720
1,464,552 1,445,274
Net current assets REEEFEE 4,127,945 1,933,884
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRSDER 13,644,216 8,184,842
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %= & 81 % ik % ¥R 3k

At 31 March 2011 R=—Z——&F=F=+—H

2011 2010
—E—-—F —E—FF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Non-current liabilities EmBEE
Obligations under finance leases BEHEEEBL-
— amount due after one year —F & D B RIE 32 282 94
Convertible bonds (including AR E 57 (B 1S K
conversion option derivatives) HETETA) 33 6,479,140 1,667,247
Other derivative financial EMpsTESmI A
instruments 34 - 378
Deferred tax liabilities BELEHEEE 35 869,161 719,527
7,348,583 2,387,246
6,295,633 5,797,596
Capital and reserves AR AR R % 8
Share capital [N 36 61,748 61,139
Reserves R 6,233,885 5,736,457
Total equity T 4R 6,295,633 5,797,596

FERNEBEMAEEZEVUEZRAEMBRERR -
E——FRXATHEEEESHERRK
B Wl TINEERKRES:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 146 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
June 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pan Sutong Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond
EERE TER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EFE
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Statement of Financial Position
B AR R R

At 31 March 2011 R—E——F=A=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF ZE—E2F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 FET FET
Non-current assets EMBEE
Intangible assets EAEE 19 920 90
Investments in subsidiaries BN alEE 22 2,066,330 674,602
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEWHI B A B I 27 8,522,249 5,087,325
10,588,669 5,762,017
Current asset mBEE
Bank balances and cash ROTEFRRSE 29 17,692 1,027
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H b fE A~ 2018 30 1,607 1,702
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN NGIE @] 27 129,884 129,889
Amount due to a related company B —HBEARKE 31 - 44,381
Tax payable fE 45 % 18 1,982 1,982
133,473 177,954
Net current liabilities mMEAREFE (115,781) (176,927)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERLSDAR 10,472,888 5,585,090
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Convertible bonds (including Al E A (B IR N R
conversion option derivatives) EAESTA T R) 33 6,479,140 1,667,247
Other derivative financial EmpsrEEemI A
instruments 34 - 378
6,479,140 1,667,625
3,993,748 3,917,465
Capital and reserves B A K 5
Share capital A& 72N 36 61,748 61,139
Reserves i 37 3,932,000 3,856,326
Total equity M % B R 3,993,748 3,917,465

Pan Sutong

DIRECTOR

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

SEEDEERE

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ—

T——F=HA=t+—HILFE

Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

EAREEAELR
Share-
based Equity Capital
Share Share compensation Translation participants redemption  Retained
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
i) e e
kx  ROEE  WeRE AERE SEARE  BERE  REEN fazt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T Thr T Thr T T T
(Note 37)
(Kt 3t37)
At 1 April 2009 RZETNENA-AER 61129 2962745 27300 29250  (185918) 173 1665674 4823630
Profit for the year EEEH - - - - - - 929,607 929,607
Exchange difference arising on TERNEBRELESR
translation EE - - - 2,733 - - = 1733
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE 2 AN ALE - - - 2,733 - - 929607 954340
Recognition of equity-settled BANRREERIARR A
share-hased payments S ATES = = 19,612 = = = = 19612
Exercise of share options i ERE 10 339 (85) = = = = 264
Lapse of share options BEREAN = - (250) = = = = (250)
At31 March 2010 R-B-FF=f=t-H
Ea 61,139 2,963,084 46,584 317,253 (185918) 173 259,281 5797,5%
Profit for the year EEEH - - - - - - 121,924 121,924
Exchange difference arising on NEENEBRELESR
translation 8 - - - M - - N AARYE
Total comprehensive income RERZEMAER
for the year - - - 21,179 - - 121,924 393,103
Recognition of equity-settled BANRELE RURG A
share-hased payments B AR - - 50,078 - = = = 50,078
Exercise of share options TEERE 108 11,748 (4,736) - - - - 7120
Lapse of share options BRERY - - (1,899) - - - 1,895 -
Conversion of convertible bonds RRTBRES 501 47235 S - 4,986 - (4,986) 47736
At 31 March 2011 HZg--f&
ZA=+-A&H 61,748 3,022,067 90,031 588432 (180,932 173 2714114 6,295,633
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEREREREK

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B2 =—Z——F=A=+—HLLFE

2011 2010
—E-—-fF —ZE-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Operating activities KA
Profit for the year A4 Z s A 121,924 929,607
Adjustments for: fEH T 51 38 % -
Increase in fair value of investment BEWE 2 AT AL
properties (450,475) (1,700,340)
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BEREE
equipment and ponies AR T4 & 8,139 2,355
Finance costs B 7% & B 255,853 248,261
Gains on derivatives TET Rz W= (297,988) (17,054)
Interest income B A (2,296) (5,988)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME BEREZE
plant and equipment and ponies ARBIE2E TE (= 443 ®3)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BAE KBS ﬁﬁ 1,257 -
Share-based payments expenses, net VAR D 7% % ARz
ERFR 50,078 19,362
Income tax expense FrE B R X 112,619 444,194
Unrealised exchange difference REHEL =5 (129,818) (6,069)
Operating cash flows before movements in REtEEEREHAIZ
working capital BEHERE (330,264) (85,675)
Increase in properties under BRPSTEYEL N (618,371) (177,367)
development for sale
Increase in inventories 7 & 38 0 (30,583) =
(Increase) decrease in trade and other JE 5 B 3R R EL A FE WK IE - TR
receivables, prepayments and deposits RTRE g & (g )
D (106,565) 81,609
Decrease in trade and other payables JE 1< BR 3K K EL A FE 11 ;UIB
NS (150,063) (74,898)
Cash used in operations KEEKR SR (1,235,846) (256,331)
Tax paid B & A - (22,856)
Net cash used in operating activities KE RN ML FE (1,235,846) (279,187)
Investing activities REZH
Acquisition of prepaid lease payments BABENSHERE (88,889) (34,080)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BAME BEREE
and ponies LA K2 55 bE (1,387,061) (104,559)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BAME BELRERE
plant and equipment Effi&ke (41,759) =
Construction costs paid in respect of RERKREMED RN
investment properties under construction B A (285,224) (266,301)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE BE KRR ﬁ
plant and equipment and ponies AR B ICFT 8 50T 422 8
Repayments from (advances to) related &N A& (g %\) 178 (96)
companies
Interest received 2 U F B 2,296 5,988
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank deposits B 18R 17 77 OB A (35 00) 6,726 (5,726)
Net cash used in investing activities BEFEBR ML FE (1,793,311) (404,766)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2011 & —ZT——F=ZA=1+—HILFE

GEREMNBEMK

2011 2010
—E-—-F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Financing activities MEEH
Repayments of bank loans BERITER - (56,800)
Interest and finance charges paid ENFMERMEER (153,627) (106,419)
Repayments of obligations under finance REREHEERED
leases (60) (40)
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds FIT I AR B AT 15 R 2,586,339 -
Convertible bonds issue expenses —J BRREFETHAX (64,487) =
Proceeds from issue of shares upon exercise RITHEBRERZTRG
of share options FT 1% ;IE 7,120 264
Repayment to a related company ] — ] B8 38 2 5] 18 5K (44,381) =
Advances from related companies ﬁ*ﬁ FER/NTR =N 46,469 37,839
New bank loans raised EEHZRITER - 56,800
Loan advance from a shareholder — % IR 8 E R 2,325,000 -
Net cash from (used in) financing activities BMEEHRESMACEE)FE 4,702,373 (68,356)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash RekReEE/Y2EMN
equivalents (R2) 58 1,673,216 (752,309)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FNzReEREEERY 585,748 1,331,453
beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEER BT B 28,742 6,604
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FRZ2BeEREEEY 2,287,706 585,748
of the year
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents 3R & KB SBMZEFE DI
Bank balances and cash RTEFERS 2,287,706 585,748
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &2 —ZF——F=A=+—HILFE

General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the ”Stock Exchange”). The Company'’s
immediate holding company is Goldin Group (Investment)
Limited (“Goldin Group (Investment)”), a private limited
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and its
ultimate holding company is Goldin Real Estate Financial
Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”), a private
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
which is ultimately owned by Mr. Pan, a Director and Chairman
of the Company, who has controlling interest in the Company.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” included in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is different from the functional currency of
the Company, Renminbi (“RMB”), as the Company is a public
company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on
the Stock Exchange, where most of its investors are located
in Hong Kong and therefore, the Directors consider that
Hong Kong dollars is preferable in presenting the operating
results and financial position of the Company and the Group.
The majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are operating in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") with RMB as their
functional currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2011 are set out in
Note 45.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & —ZT——F=ZA=1+—HILFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied
the following new and revised standards and interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008)
HKAS 32 (Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) = Int 17

HK —Int 5

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions
Business Combinations

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

Classification of Right Issues

Eligible Hedged Items

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material effect on the amounts reported in
these consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & Z —ZT——F=—A=1+—HILtFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards and interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters?

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters?

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets*

HKFRS 9 Financial Instrumentss

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements®

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangementss

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assetss

HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009)  Related Party Disclosures?
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) ~ Separate Financial Statements®

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in Associates and Joint Venturesé

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
(Amendments) Requirementt
HK(IFRIC) = Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with

Equity Instruments?
t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or
1 January 2011, as appropriate.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements
for financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective — continued

e Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

e In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Currently, under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will
be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for financial year ending 31 March 2014.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) — continued

New and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective — continued

The amendments to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred Tax: Recovery
of Underlying Assets” mainly deal with the measurement of
deferred tax for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model in accordance with HKAS40 “Investment
Property”. Based on the amendments, for the purposes of
measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
investment properties measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of the investment properties are presumed
to be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted in certain circumstances. The Directors anticipate that
the application of the amendments to HKAS 12 may have an
impact on deferred tax recognised for investment properties.
The management of the Group is in the process of ascertaining
the financial impact.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and by the Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 March each year.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or
up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 April
2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated
as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEETHEK &

Business combinations — continued

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 April
2010 - continued

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of an acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with
share-based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 “share-based
Payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquire (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations — continued

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 April
2010 - continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or
another measurement basis required by another standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the measurement period about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date. Measurement period
does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset
or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations — continued

Business combinations that took place on or after 1 April
2010 - continued

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured
to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the
Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or
loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date.

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 April
2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition were
generally recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Business combinations — continued

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 April
2010 - continued

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised
amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s interest
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the
acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the minority interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if, the
contingent consideration was probable and could be measured
reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
were recognised against the cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for
as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step. Any
additional acquisition did not affect the previously recognised
goodwill.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in
profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment and ponies

Property, plant and equipment and ponies including buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
development and construction in progress as described below)
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Ponies held for provision of polo club related services are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment and ponies (other than
properties under development and construction in progress)
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Property, plant and equipment and ponies — continued

Prior to 1 April 2009, property that was being constructed
or developed for future use as an investment property was
included in properties under development until construction or
development was completed, at which time it was reclassified
to and subsequently accounted for as an investment property.
Any difference between the fair value of the properties at
that date and its previous carrying amount was recognised in
profit or loss. Upon adoption of amendments to HKAS 40, that
property had been reclassified as an investment property at 1
April 2009.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment and ponies is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment and ponies is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Property, plant and equipment and ponies — continued
Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost,
less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Other assets

Other assets includes the land which was reclassified from
assets classified as held for sale, are carried at costs less
any accumulated impairment losses and are shown as non-
current assets. Cost includes the cost of land, construction cost
and other development expenditure and other attributable
expenses.

Prepaid lease payments

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term except where the properties are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model, other
assets, properties under development for sale and assets
classified as held for sale.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets
are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended to
be held for sale in the ordinary course of business are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value and are shown
as current assets. Cost includes the cost of land, construction
cost and other development expenditure and other attributable
expenses. Net realisable value is determined by management
based on prevailing market conditions.

Assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for
immediate sale in its present condition.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of
the assets’ previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

If the Group has classified an asset as held for sale, but the
criteria of held for sales are no longer met, the Group shall
cease to classify the asset as held for sale. The Group shall
measure a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held
for sale at the lower of: (a) its carrying amount before the asset
was classified as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation,
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised
had the asset not been classified as held for sale, and (b) its
recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not
to sell.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued 3. FEGHEEX - &

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets —
continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating
interest income/expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts/payments (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset/liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and deposits,
amount due from a related company, amounts due from
subsidiaries, entrusted loan receivable, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets - continued

Impairment of loans and receivables — continued

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all loans and receivables with the exception of trade
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, amount due from
a related company and entrusted loan receivable where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable, amounts due from subsidiaries, amount due from a
related company and entrusted loan receivable are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option
derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both the
liability and conversion option components are recognised at
fair value.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

3. FEETHE - &

$RMIE-&

tREE - @&

B R Y E R —
FEERRERXEREAEZ RESHE
OB E BB M RER K B
NERIE - Bl —RIRE A A R E K E
ERERBRI HERESEBEREE
BEHMR -BREFAZEEEZH SR
BREPRR-ERENER BERAEARQ A
HE - PEUR —RIREE D B IE RS T
ERWwa AT KER  HEREEER
Mo e E 2 ATE M RE Bt
ABERA o

MEBRHRE G REBESBRD MA
AL ETB LRERBEBEREELE
EMHER AEHCHIAZREBREE
BB TARE - HEZE ERRERED
ERZEEE THEBEBRABRARERZ
BN -

TRHEERRAEZETA
SEERZET . ERMABERRAREET
DREMATLANZHZHEERERAE
EBRAERTAZEEM DR -

BRAESRTARBERARNAEE LK EM
FRBERZEENGES ZEMAH-

AR ES(BIZBEER LB ETE
TA)
AEBBET A BREFCEEBERLE
HERSS RNERAERFE LY AHEEEIE
B-BUBEERESIEMEHMEEBLIA
RERNGFEEHBE 2RAEE T ANINCZ
FRGEECHBEARE B LB ETE
TE-REHER BERLGHAERS
TN EER -

SIRMEZERAR AR F3, 2011



©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option
derivative — continued

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and conversion option
derivative in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the conversion option derivative is
charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Other derivative financial instruments

Other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and thus they are deemed as financial assets held for trading or
financial liabilities held for trading.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments — continued
Obligation to acquire minority interests

A forward contract which contained an obligation to acquire
minority interest of a subsidiary by delivering a fixed amount
of cash and receiving a fixed number of the subsidiary’s
shares was recognised as a financial liability. At initial
recognition, the financial liability was measured at the present
value of the contracted amount (consideration payable)
with a corresponding debit to equity-minority interests and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to subsidiaries, amounts due to related companies
and entrusted loan payable) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by
other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments are derivative financial
instrument. Warrants classified as a derivative financial
instrument are recognised at their fair values at the date of issue.
They are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately.

If the fair values of the convertible bonds issued to existing
shareholders of the Company upon initial recognition is in
excess of the proceeds received, such excess is recognised as a
distribution to equity participants in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Financial instruments — continued

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety
(e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part
of a transferred asset or retains a residual interest that does
not result in the retention of substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and the Group retains control), the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial
asset between the part it continues to recognise under
continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the
date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and
the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e., the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.,
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (the translation reserve).

From 1 April 2010 onwards, on the disposal of a foreign
operation (i.e., a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial
disposal of a subsidiary that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Leasing — continued

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model, other assets, properties under
development for sale and assets classified as held for sale.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed pension schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale for which the commencement
date for capitalisation is on or after 1 April 2010, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

3. Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from the profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years, and it further excludes statement
of comprehensive income items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductibles
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to Directors of the Company and
employees

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested
before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the Group's consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit
or loss in respect of the value of options in the year. Upon
the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded by the Company as additional share capital at
the nominal value of the shares and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the share is recorded
by the Company as share premium. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the
register of outstanding options.

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested on
or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based compensation
reserve) or recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share option granted vest immediately.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Share-based payment transactions — continued

Share options granted to Directors of the Company and
employees - continued

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested on
or after 1 April 2005 — continued

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
subsequent to vesting or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to other share option scheme
participants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which
case the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values
of the goods or services received are recognised as expenses
immediately, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition
as assets. Corresponding adjustment has been made to equity
(share-based compensation reserve).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
conditions. In relying on the valuation report, the Directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

THREMEMGTFZEZRR

REMBAKEZ G5 BRR(OK E3m )
B - NABE S AL RSB E MR
EXEERBEZREEFEDLHE - 5
EBE&R - ZERFARERBRKROIABEL
BLEMKESHABIEZRELE - BR
BRAUEZEHAAR-

BEr RAERBRKIIASEEERERN -
EHE A B EREETETZH
B-ARNZPE®ER AHEITEXER
B RR KB - Bl &R E AT &K 2K 5

7
R e

TXRET - EMBFEZEERABER
HEFLEANARBRZEXRRER Z2EBARNK
ZEEBREERBERARMGEF TABRAR
ZEHMEBERR -

REWEzz2RF¥E
REMERBEBLEXGEMETZHEE
AnFEIR REERFER G EA
TBERFRETRE TG ET AR
B -REBHEERSR AAREEEE
REHBAYERAREEFER 2RKR
[ bR 2R By T 5L

SIRMEZERER AR Fik 2011



72)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty — continued

Fair values of conversion option derivative of convertible
bonds and other derivative financial instruments

The Directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
qguoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied.

The fair values of conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds and other derivative financial instruments are subject
to the limitation of the Binominal model that incorporated
market data and involved uncertainty in estimates used by
management in the assumptions. Because the Binominal
model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the volatility of share price, changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Notes 33 and
34.

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax
losses of HK$356,257,000 (2010: HK$75,621,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In case where the actual future profits
generated are more than expected, additional recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which should be recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
period in which it takes place.
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits, as
disclosed in Note 37 and consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the Directors of the
Company prepare the annual budget taking into account
of the provision of funding. Based on the proposed annual
budget, the Directors of the Company consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of
new debts or the redemption of existing debt, if necessary.

Financial Instruments

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial instruments
include trade and other receivables and deposits, amounts
due from subsidiaries, amount due from a related company,
entrusted loan receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances, trade and other payables, amounts due to
subsidiaries, amounts due to related companies, entrusted
loan payable, convertible bonds (including conversion option
derivatives) and other derivative financial instruments. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

EXEREE

AEBEZERNEREERRAKSBEARNCZE
BYAEELE RNBRECER KR
SREBABRRRARKAER - NEE 2 ¥
BREE T —FEIEE -

AEBZEARBERERSHEE A5
RMEIVRGERZEHRRAREND
BITIRA - B R AR &M P A

ARREEEHRITEARBE - FART
— R ARFREERUFERER EF
EZEINESEE RKREFFERER
ARREFTZEREAKRAREEARER T
MEzZRR RBRASEEEB ZEZZ
AEBERBNEFTERBEBIRNRE - #T
B ARBTHEXEERAERNULF
BHEBRBEARE-

TEMIA

AEBRARRZIESMIABREENR
EREEMERKRBELRE  BEHEB R
AIRIE - BN —MEELRNRIE BRE
AEFX DERRTER RTEF B
T BRR & E b B 5RIE - AT B & Rl
B ENBERARE BNEZXEK
M Ers(BRELAGHENTETRIRE
MwiTEEMIA - BZEeMIAEBZ
[ Bz B 48 1 35 B e (8 R &L B - S0 L B B
HMERAR) FERRERBEESRA
B NXHINBEZFRBRZBEK B IR
EERRERZSRAR URRERNME
R B EUE B 5 e

SIRMEZERAR AR F, 2011



2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. €M IT A - &
There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these AEEMEER 2 ZSHEIRBKESEER
kinds of risks or the manner in which it manages and measures. Rtz Emgs.
(a) Categories of financial instruments @ =@ I AE5
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010

% -“T-TF —¥--F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx  TAT  FTER  TAx

Financial assets T EE
Loans and receivables B & W R

(including cash and cash (BERE R

equivalents) NEEEY) 2,405,644 837,055 8,539,941 5,088,352
Financial liabilities T EEE
Amortised cost 55 K AR 6,682,058 2,368,537 5,378,217 1,434,503
Conversion option AR E S

derivatives of Z W M HA R

convertible bonds TTHET A 1,232,358 408,659 1,232,358 408,659
Other derivative financial H 174

instruments SR T HE - 378 - 378

(b) Interest rate risk (b) F = = b

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due AEBEHRGREAREMEXEAR - JHK
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate BRITEFERRITTSMNEZ RS - K
on bank deposits. The Group is also exposed to fair value SETHEHBREATFENERR F2H
interest rate risk which related primarily to the liability RARmEmAiRkEs 2B ERHD
component of convertible bonds issued by the Company. Bl -ANEEREI BT FEMITE
The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts TEAGHANEREFR R A
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the EREERREZTEREZREYHPEERXR
management will consider hedging significant interest rate =G R e

exposure should the need arise.
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(b) Interest rate risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank deposits and the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis
points increase (2010: 10 basis points increase) is used for
the management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. It is expected that the interest rate
will not decrease in the next twelve months from the end
of the reporting period.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher (2010:
10 basis points higher) and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March
2011 would increase by HK$1,707,000 (2010: profit for
the year would increase by HK$447,000).

Foreign currency risk

Certain pledged bank deposits, bank balances, amounts
due from subsidiaries, amounts due to related companies,
trade and other payables, convertible bonds (including
conversion option derivatives) and other derivative
financial instruments of the Group and the Company are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group and the
Company currently do not have a formal currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will further consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. ®MI A&

(c MEREE - &
AEBRADAZEHEERSHE

(c) Foreign currency risk — continued
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s

financial assets and financial liabilities denominated in EEREAMEGHEBEEEEREREH
currencies other than the respective functional currencies ZEBEZUMEEEUIIN B BER) W
of the relevant group entities at the reporting date are as N
follows:
The Group P
Assets Liabilities
BE =N
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——% —2-2F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET  TER

—e——% —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET

Hong Kong dollars BT
("HKD") (M7l 18,046 1,305 6,480,691 1,713,651
United States dollars E7T
("UsD") e 39,095 13,680 10,784 1,560
The Company A FE
Assets Liabilities
BE =V
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g——% —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR  TER

—®-—-% —T-T%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT  TAL

HKD BT 4,365,359 4,865,820 6,610,574 1,843,540
usD xXTT 36 2 - -
Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011 SIRMEEIRARAT FR 2011
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6. EMITHE - &

(c Sh¥EEBE — &

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(c) Foreign currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2010: 5%) increase and decrease in the relevant
functional currencies against the relevant foreign
currencies. 5% (2010: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used for
the management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% (2010: 5%) change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes external receivables and
payables as well as loans to foreign operations within the
Group entities where the denomination of the receivables
and payables is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit/a decrease in loss
for the year where the respective functional currencies
strengthen 5% (2010: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% (2010: 5%) weakening of respective
functional currencies against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit for
the year/ loss for the year, and the balances below would
be negative.

BRE DN
TRFLARNEE N BRI E KA
BINE EFA R TRES%(Z T —TF:
5%)B 7B RE - BB EMEB5% (=
T—TF:5%)HRRELRHINEE
R2ABAEELETTIH  FREE
APMEBREHRITEIL AINE BEN
2EMBIEE WRFERIEZIINEREE
EHS% (=T —ZF:5%) & 8 M H
BIRE - QLR E o T B 3E A E IR
BREMNZTE UEANEEEEBHET
NG E RS 2 B TR RIE R
ERZFELESTRER ZWEEE B
Iz EBEBEMN  TRZEBER TS
N BB HBBEINEFER(ZF —
TF 5%)RFRNGEMNZEMEIE
ZRL - ZMEEE HIEBRESERE
5% (Z T —ZF 5%)F HUAKNEE
wmH AN EFEEBZEENEEMAE
R-MTIkzEHRTBREAS-

HKD impact USD impact
BreE EnrEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—F ZZT-TF ZEB——-F ZT—-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHEx FH&T
THE GROUP &
Increase (decrease) in profit 4 & 3 7|
for the year 18 40 Gt 2>) 278,524 72,207 (1,368) (519)
THE COMPANY b/ /NI |
Decrease (increase) in loss 4 € & 18
for the year A (38 ) 112,261 (151,114) ) -
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(d) Other price risk

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds
and warrants

The Group and the Company are required to estimate
the fair values of the conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds and warrants issued by the Company
at the end of each reporting period, which therefore
exposed the Group and the Company to equity price risk.
The fair value adjustment will be affected either positively
or negatively, amongst others, by the changes in risk-free
rate, the Company’s share price, share price volatility and
foreign currency exchange rate. Details of the convertible
bonds and warrants issued by the Company are set out in
Notes 33 and 34, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s share price, volatility
and foreign currency exchange rate at the reporting date
only as the Directors of the Company consider that the
change in risk-free rate may not have significant financial
impact on the fair values of conversion option derivatives
of convertible bonds and warrants.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(d) Other price risk — continued

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds

and warrants — continued
Sensitivity analysis — continued
Changes in share price

If the share price of the Company had been 10% (2010:
10%) higher while all other input variables of the valuation
models were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would decrease and the Company’s loss for the year would

increase as follows:

6. e TR - &

(0 HaE®sRR - &
TRERES2ABLPETEIAR

R EE

- &

g E AT —
B2 2B

wmn

EARABREBELEAI0NR(ZE—ZF:
10%)  MEEER AN ZAE Mg A
FBREBHERTE TXEEFE T
ZRORANABDEEBEEBEMBER

2011 2010
—E——-F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&RT FHET
Higher by 10% (2010: 10%) EA10%(ZZFE—ZFF : 10%)
Derivative financial instruments: MEsRITA:
Warrants AR E - (898)
Conversion option derivatives of AMERESZ
convertible bonds HiRETETR (309,314) (46,737)

If the share price of the Company had been 10% (2010:
10%) lower while all other input variables of the valuation
models were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase and the Company’s loss for the year would

EARBRETEI0N(ZT—FF:
10%) MEEEARNZAAEEME A
BEBHHEFTE AEBEFEE
Mz M E AR R ZFEREIESEMN

decrease as follows. BT o
2011 2010
—E——-F —FE-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Lower by 10% (2010: 10%) TEE10%(ZE—2F: 10%)
Derivative financial instruments: TSR IA:
Warrants R - 295
Conversion option derivatives of AMERESZ
convertible bonds HiEETETAR 270,870 44,674
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(d) Other price risk — continued

6. EMIHE - &

o HMEKERE - &

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds TRBREFZARPETEIAR

and warrants — continued
Sensitivity analysis — continued

AEREE - &

Changes in volatility IR 2 B
If the volatility to the valuation model had been 10% (2010: HHEENPRZEELEATEI10%
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held (ZZ—ZF:10%) MAA g
constant, the Group's profit for the year would (decrease)/ BRAE BAAXEEZFEEMNECH
increase and the Company’s loss for the year would ), MAR R ZFE BB
(increase)/decrease as follows: mm AT
2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-—FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Higher by 10% (2010: 10%) EA10%(ZZFE—ZFF : 10%)
Derivative financial instruments: MEeRITA:
Warrants AR E - (1,621)
Conversion option derivatives of AMERESZ
convertible bonds HiEETETAR (279,475) (39,641)
Lower by 10% (2010: 10%) TE10%(ZZT—F%F :10%)
Derivative financial instruments: MmEeRITA:
Warrants AR HE 78 - 366
Conversion option derivatives of ABmEESZ
convertible bonds HMHRITETA 277,395 39,771
Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011 SIRMEEIRARAT FR 2011
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(d) Other price risk — continued

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

6. e TR - &

o EMEEERE -8

Conversion option derivatives of convertible bonds
and warrants - continued

Sensitivity analysis — continued

Changes in foreign currency exchange rate

If the foreign currency exchange rate of RMB against Hong
Kong dollars had been 5% (2010: 5%) higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit
for the year would increase (decrease) and the Company’s
loss for the year would decrease (increase) as follows:

TRBRESFCLBHETMEIAR
RBRER - &

INEETE R 7 BB
WEAREBEBTZIINEER LT/
TRES%(ZE—ZFF :5%) MATAHE
MEHEFTE AARAEEZFE R
FMEMCRD) MARAZFEEE
B OEMmT

2011 2010
—E——-F —E-FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FE&RT FHET
Higher by 5% (2010: 5%) EAS%(ZZE—ZFF :5%)
Derivative financial instruments: PTESBTA:
Conversion option derivatives of AMEESZ
convertible bonds R EEISTET A 61,618 20,433
Warrants AR E - 19
Lower by 5% (2010: 5%) THE5%(ZE—FF :5%)
Derivative financial instruments: MEeR T A:
Conversion option derivatives of ABmEESZ
convertible bonds HiEETETR (61,618) (20,433)

Warrants R

- (19)

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analyses are unrepresentative of the inherent
market risk as the pricing model used in the fair value
valuation of the conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds and warrants involve multiple variables
and certain variables are inter-dependent.
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6. Financial Instruments — continued

(e) Credit risk

As at 31 March 2011, the Group’s and the Company's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group and the Company due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from:

e the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position and the Company’s statement of
financial position; and

e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to
financial guarantee issued by the Company as
disclosed in Note 43.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group is responsible for ensuring that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the Directors of the Company consider that
the Group'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies or stated-owned
bank in the PRC.

At 31 March 2011, the Group’s concentration of credit risk

on other receivables was mainly in PRC.

The Company is exposed to concentration of credit risk on
a few subsidiaries on the amounts due from subsidiaries.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

6. e TR - &

() Liquidity risk f REBELRMKE
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management NBEeRBEREEKEFERE
rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an Ee MEEFEERAEBERARF
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the EREEH FHEARABZESREABE
management of the Group's and the Company’s short, CEBIHFE BUBREZRHES
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management ElEEER AEERARAAIEE
requirements. The Group and the Company manage BFHEREBERRTEESR THE
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking RRBESRER -
facilities.
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TRHAFMLAEERARAAeHEEE
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities 5P A BR R I Ho At fE T FRIE - B &
(including trade and other payables, entrusted loan RER - ABRREHFZBERLS E
payable, the liability component of convertible bonds, NHBRARIREERRREBUARAF
amounts due to subsidiaries and related companies ERIKBEMEBEB ZABREZLHAX
and corporate guarantees) and obligations under H-BEERAEEHEEZEER Z2HEH
finance leases. The table has been drawn up based on B ZeRaErkMEHEEEH 2K
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities and ARIRBE @RI T - WRBEMNS KRR
obligations under finance leases based on the earliest date EZHREM -
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
The Group K&
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than 36 6 months 1-2 years 25years undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year cashflows — 31.3.2011
W-8--%
EEH =fiA zz A FHERE =A=1-A
G4 W ~fBA F-f  -FZE ZFEE FeE  NEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
TR THR TR TER TR TER TR
2011 -§--f
Trade and other payables EREHR
At ERRE - 1,205,438 - - - 171,469 1,376,907 1,376,907
Liability component of MhkEH2
convertible bonds AEHA 1.9% - 173,765 252,170 2,078,695 5,304,246 7,808,876 5,246,782
Amounts due to related companies  fEFf BE A 7 FA - 46,469 - - - - 46,469 46,469
Entrusted loan payable EREZER 4.8% 12,469 - - - - 12,469 11,900
Obligations under finance leases ~ BREAHEEH 6.0% B 8 57 114 8 455 350
1,264,404 173,193 252,227 2,078,809 5,475,943 9,245,176 6,682,408
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6. Financial Instruments — continued 6. ®WMIT A - /&
Liquidity risk — continued H RBESEKR - &
The Group - continued AEE - &
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than 36 6 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year 12 years 25years  cashflows 3132010
RZF-TF
il 252] =R zE ~ER AEFRE ZA=t-A
il W ~EA s —E°F “FRE ik ol
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tén Thm Thn TR THR TR
210 Z%-%%
Trade and other payables (Note) ~ FERT B3 R £ fh JE
OB (Hi3E) = 1,013,286 = = = 52,282 1,065,568 1,065,568
Liability component of TaREHZEEHA
convertible bonds 75% - 53,201 53,201 106,403 1,684,711 1,897,516 1,258,588
Amounts due to related companies  FERf BE A 7FA - 44,381 - - - - 44,381 44,381
Obligations under finance leases A & EH% 6.0% 19 14 29 58 38 158 138
1,057,686 53215 53,230 106,461 1,737,031 3,007,623 2,368,675
Note: As at 31 March 2010, advance from X&/5FHFFEHERZER i RZE—ZTEFE=ZA=+—"H BIFE=
/A 7] Tianjin Hi-Tech Property Development Company Limited FREBREMERBBRAA(RE
(“Tianjin Hi-Tech Property”), an independent third party, in BREHMENREIRLEFTRERE
respect of construction and operation of the polo club and BN E R M 2 B A K ¥ 160,000,000 7T
theme park, was amounted to RMB160,000,000 (equivalent (#8257 181,760,000 7T) * 12 B B F| =
to HK$181,760,000) with effective interest rate at 21%. 21%Er B - ABAFHBEH N W E30 8T
Details are disclosed in Note 30. The remaining trade and other JE < BR R B EL fh FE < FRIE I AT S -
payables are non-interest bearing.
The Company b /N
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than 36 6 months undiscounted  amount at
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year 1-2 years 25years  cashflows  31.3.2011
R=g--%
it 237 =fEA zz AMEA FHEEE =R=t-H
Gl UF ~EA E-f t-Jut:3 1013 b+ MEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn Tn TEn TER
M “§--F
Other payables Ef A - 1,551 - - - - 1,551 1,551
Liabilty component of THRES
convertible bonds BERD 1.9% - 173,765 252,170 2,078,695 5,304,246 7,808,876 5,246,782
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERKBARZA - 129,884 - - - - 129,884 129,884
Corporate quarantees RAER - 2,000 - - - - 2,000 -
133435 173,765 252,170 2,078,695 5,304,246 7942311 5,318,217
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & Z - ——F=—A=1+—HILtFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

() Liquidity risk — continued

6. ®MI A - &
H REBESRAM — &

The Company - continued AT — &
Weighted Total Carrying
average Less than 36 6 months undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year 12 years 2-5 years cash flows 3132010
RZ5-%%
il 252] =R =z ~ER AMFRE ZA=t-A
% T ~EA B —5°% Y EE AR
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thm Thn TR Thn TR Thn TR
2010 Z8-%%
Other payables EtEfHE - 1,645 - - - - 1,645 1,645
Liabifty component of convertible ] # % (&% 2
bonds BEHH 75% - 53201 5320 106403 1684711 1897516 1258588
Amounts due to subsidaries EfHBARZE - 129,839 - - - - 129,889 129,889
Amount due to a related company  JEFT — I EE A 7
A - 44,381 - - - - 14381 44,381
Corporate guarantee NEER = 2,000 = = = - 2,000 -
177,915 53,201 53,201 106,403 1,684,711 2075431 1,434,503
Note: Liquidity risk analysis excludes conversion option derivatives Mz RBEERBRAINTABEFRIRRSE

of convertible bonds and warrants which do not involve cash

settlements.

(9) Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding conversion option derivatives of convertible
bonds and other derivative financial instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

e the fair values of conversion option derivatives of
convertible bonds and other derivative financial
instruments are determined using option pricing

model.

The Directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised costs in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their corresponding fair values.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

6. Financial Instruments — continued

6.

(9) Fair values of financial instruments — continued
Fair value measurements recognised in the statement

of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

e Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs).

2

t@IHE-&

O EMIAZAFE-&
REBRABEERAZATFENE

TEREHRBAVFEFNIHRBRITE
ZEBIEZON BAFEZBE
EBEENERE=HR"

e FRAFEFAEDNERFTAL
RREBEABEMTSHE(E IR
ZBABBIMGZEELRES
ABEBZBEREAGH -

The Group and the Company EEBRAEAF
Level 3
E=4&
2011 2010
—E——-F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAT
Financial liabilities cREE
Conversion option derivatives of ARRES 2 IR
convertible bonds PTET AR 1,232,358 408,659
Other derivative financial 8= Dy el =1
instruments — warrants T E-RIREF - 378
Total 4@ =t 1,232,358 409,037
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE—

6. Financial Instruments — continued

(9) Fair values of financial instruments — continued

B 5 ¥R & MY &

T —F=A=+—HILFE

6. e TR - &

O TMITEZQFE-&

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of CREBECE=RATFETEHER
financial liabilities

Other Conversion

derivative option

financial derivatives of

instruments — convertible

warrants bonds

HEmfT4E Al AR (& 5

ST AH— 2 R EA R

7 B PTETAR

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At 1 April 2009 RZZEZTNFMA—H 27,270 396,715
Gains or losses recognised in: MR TFIEE BER

W 2= ok 85 18 ¢

— profit or loss —EBEuREx (26,892) 9,838

— other comprehensive income — Hitt2EKA - 2,106

At 31 March 2010 R-—E—ZFF=HA=+—H 378 408,659
Gains or losses recognised in: MRTFIEE ®R

W 2 ok & 18

— profit or loss —EBEX (378) (297,610)

— other comprehensive income —HEfmEEEA - 30,537

Conversion of convertible bonds A A] AR 1 A - (12,818)

Issue of convertible bonds BTABRRES - 1,103,590

At 31 March 2011 R-B—-——F=H=+-—8H - 1,232,358

7. Segment Information

Information provided to the Directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of properties or services delivered or provided.
This is also the basis of organisation in the Group, whereby the
management has chosen to organise the Group in different
operating activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %x & 9 % 3R &k B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & Z —ZT——F=—A=1+—HILFE

7. Segment Information — continued 7.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

1. Property development — developing and selling properties

2. Property investment — leasing of investment properties

3. Hotel and polo club operation — provision of hotel
accommodation and related services, food and beverage

sales and polo club related services and facilities

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

DEER - &

REBFBVMHREENFESHE A
AEBZAIRED AT :

=115)
(a3
E)l
i

1. MEER-BRIMHEDE

2. MERE-HEREME

W

BENEHREEKE-RBEBEEERER
RS EREEUKRSKEHEEA
PR 75 & 5% i

DBI‘IQ/\&%n =
$'§IZH& ERERERARE D MMM

by reportable segment: T
Property development Property investment  Hotel and polo club operation Total
ES ES EERFRERH &3t
2011 2010 201 2010 201 2010 2011 2010

R S T B T S S S

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TERL TEL TAn

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

TEn TARL TEL TR TR

Revenue Yig - = - = - > - =
Segment (oss) profit AHER)ET (25,546) (4,546 392,638 1,690,769 (145,827) (1,002) 221,265 1,685,221

Interest income MEWA 2,2% 5988
Unallocated corporate expenses £ AR A A BE (31,153) (86,201)
Finance costs BRER (255,853) (248,261)
Gains on derivatives NETRz M 297,988 17,054
Profit before tax BRAEH 234583 1,373,801

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of central administration
costs, directors’ salaries, interest income, finance costs and
gains on derivatives. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker, Directors of the Company, for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

AHED A TR ENEIMM A&
BresdBEXBER - 28EN EBEES
Mz E@8H BE PROTKER &
EH NBRA MBEARTAETAR
ZWEREOEER DR EELER
RERRRAER)ERUIEE R BE R K
bz E%&o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HlZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

7. Segment Information — continued

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities KE BERBERAFKES DM
by reportable segment: T
Property development Property investment  Hotel and polo club operation Total
HES NERE EEREREEH @t
2011 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010
g-f %% Zg--£  C2-%f §--f 3T ZB--F CI-%F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL TR TiEn TERL TEn TR FEn
Segment Assets PHEE
Segment assets PHEE 3,154,354 2,199,572 7,205,499 6,104,739 2,400,153 675,363 12,760,006 8,979,674
Unallocated corporate assets AOEAAEE 2,348,762 650,442
15,108,768 9,630,116
Segment Liabilities AREE
Segment liabilities PHaE (169,675) (76,248) (437,998) (718,166) (627,426) (533,105) (1,235,099) (1327519
Unallocated corporate liabilities ~ &AEAZIER (7,578,036) (2,505,001)
(8,813,135) (3,832,520)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than the Group head office’s corporate assets, intangible
assets, amount due from a related company, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash. Assets used
jointly by reportable segments are allocated on the basis
of the estimated gross floor areas as to be constructed by
individual reportable segments; and

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than the Group head office’s corporate liabilities, amounts
due to related companies, tax payable, obligations under
finance leases, convertible bonds (including conversion
option derivatives), other derivative financial instruments
and deferred tax liabilities. Liabilities for which reportable
segments are jointly liable are allocated in proportion to
segment assets.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #x & B 7% ¥k & M &
For the year ended 31 March 2011 &2 =—Z——F=A=+—HLFE
Segment Information — continued 7. 7ERER — &
Other segment information H b 5 B & B
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or FFAD HEE KD BEEF K RIA
segment assets:
Hotel and polo club
Property development  Property investment operation Unallocated Total
NERR NERE EEREREER OB &t
2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010
~g--§ -5-%% -3--f -T-%% <C-g%--f _-T-I% -§--f _5-%F CF--§f CE-%%
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn Tn Thn TEn Thn Tn Thn TR Thn
Additions to propert, FENE BE
plant and equipment RERARSE
and ponies 951 505 2,219 1,178 1677421 319,058 5,289 977 1,685,886 30,7118
Additions to prepaid lease  EFENREZE
payments - - - - 88,889 165,470 - - 88,889 165,470
Amortisation of prepaid B EEZIERH
lease payments - - - - 1,257 - - - 1,257 -
Depreciation of property, %1% - B
plant and equipment REBUREE
and ponies ik 313 218 731 510 4,657 4 2,438 1,623 8,139 2,35
Loss (gain) on disposal of ~ HEH% » iR
property, plant and RRENRET
equipment and ponies LEBWR) 1m - 401 - - - (130) B a3 3
Share-based payments R BERAHR
expenses, net LEREE - - - - - - 50,078 19,362 50,078 19,362
Increase in fair value of RENEL
invesiment properties AVEEN - - 450475 1700340 - - - - 450475 1700340

Geographical information

The Group's operations in property development, property
investment and hotel and polo club operation are principally

located in the PRC, excluding Hong Kong.

There was no revenue derived from the operations during the

years ended 31 March 2011 and 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

7. Segment Information — continued 7. 7ERER — &
Geographical information — continued & & K — &
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non- LT RIERBDEERAEREEMETHE
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which the EITZDM:

assets are located:

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FARBEEREE
2011 2010
—E-——fF —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
Hong Kong B8 5,149 2,448
Other regions in the PRC AR A i [ 9,511,122 6,248,510
9,516,271 6,250,958

8. Other Income 8. Hfr A
Other income for the year includes the following: FRNZEMBRABEATEIE -

2011 2010
—E——fF —ET-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Interest received on bank deposits RITFERWE Z B 2,296 5,988
Others H b 303 790
2,599 6,778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

9. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Employees’ 9. EER A EE S HEEEM S

Emoluments

(i) Details of Directors’ emoluments are as follows: ) EEMEFHBUOT:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eleven BERNKEN+—R(ZE—FF: £H)
(2010: seven) Directors were as follows: EEEBR M2 T

Fees and other emoluments

HERkEMHE
Salaries,

bonuses and  Retirement Share-based
other benefits  payments Total
Fees benefits costs expenses emoluments

g MR A&

EALR RIKEF EBAH
ne Hitrig R A &R MWessE

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TEx TER TR TR FER

(Note)
(PR &)
Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”) & & i@ %4
i Figa)) - 22,500 12 - 22,512
Professor Huang Xiaojian BEZEYE - 1,270 - 515 1,785
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RER &4 410 - - - 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REVEL 341 - - - 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai, BERE L
Sunny 273 - - - 273
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond T &3t % 4 - 3,125 12 1,718 4,855
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun BEELAE - 1,725 12 859 2,596
Mr. Wang Wuren# TR K4 - 1,604 - 1,895 3,499
Mr. Li Huamao* FERAE - 713 - 859 1,572
Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvint &2 &8 4 4+ - 1,370 12 1,031 2,413
Mr. Lee Chi Chung, Harvey*  Z @ B4+ - 97 - - 97
Total for 2011 —E—— A 1,024 32,404 48 6,877 40,353
#  Appointed as a director on 5 August 2010 ORI E-ZEFN\RRAREZERESE
*  Appointed as a director on 17 March 2011 ¥ RZE-——F=ZA+tBEZAARES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HlZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

9. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Employees’ 9. EE R A E B A FEEM S

Emoluments - continued — &
() Details of Directors’ emoluments are as follows: — ) E=SMeFB0T: —&
continued

Fees and other emoluments

e REMME
Salaries,

bonuses and  Retirement  Share-based
other benefits payments Total
Fees benefits costs expenses emoluments

e VAR A7 7

AR RIKEN EBA
e HEd BEN ZER Mees

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

(Note)
(Bt 53)
Mr. Pan RETE - 22,500 12 - 22,512
Professor Huang Xiaojian BEEEHE - 1,230 = 512 1,742
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence PR 410 - - _ 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen SEViET 341 - - _ 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai, BERET
Sunny 273 - - - 273
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, TEREE
Edmond - 3,030 12 1,708 4,750
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun A k4 - 1,470 10 854 2,334
Total for 2010 T -TFEE 1,024 28,230 34 3,074 32,362
Note: The bonuses were determined with reference to the duties Me: RADSEEEZBEREE AR
and responsibilities of the Directors, as well as remuneration XFTMEEREATRAET -

benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & 9 % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

9. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Employees’
Emoluments - continued

(i) Employees’ emoluments:

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2010: two) are the Directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments
of the remaining one (2010: three) individuals are
employees of the Group, details of whose remuneration
are as follows:

o ESRIERAFREENS

— &

(i) EEME :
EAEBRLEESHFALTH WE(=
T-ZTF WEBADRIZES &
ECMER EXRBE - TAEE—
Z(—E—THF - ZZ)EE M H
F

2011 2010
—®--% -—T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T FHE T

Salaries, bonuses and e AKX
other benefits H 48 A 4,079 5,069
Retirement benefits costs RAR AR A AR 12 36
4,091 5,105

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

HEZHMEN FTHIEE :

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF

HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7t & 2,000,000 7 7T - 3
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7% 7T £ 4,500,000 7% 7T 1 =
1 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the Directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. None of the Directors of the Company has waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

10. Finance Costs 10. &1 ¥ & F
2011 2010
—E2——fF —ET—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on: THEBEZAE :
— Finance leases —-mEHREE (59) (17)
— Entrusted loan payable —ERETER (555) -
— Shareholder’s loan and other —HBRAFRNEBHEEZ
borrowings wholly repayable MR BR B R R H b 18 R
within five years (47,580) (26,212)
Effective interest expense on convertible ] # % & 5 v B F B 5 X
bonds (371,348) (222,032)
Issue costs of convertible bonds A RS E & 2 BT AR (14,490) =
(434,032) (248,261)
Less: Amount capitalised in investment i : fE 2R E M ¥ 2 B ARk
properties under construction & %8 18,150 -
Amount capitalised in construction ERIEZERLEE
in progress 106,575 -
Amount capitalised in properties ERPGEEVWEZERL
under development for sale + 8 53,454 -
(255,853) (248,261)
11. Gains on Derivatives M. FTE T EH 2 k2
2011 2010
—E2——fF —ET—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value change on conversion option AJ# &% 2 H i H#T AT A
derivative of convertible bonds Z A 1E 21 (& 33)
(Note 33) 297,610 (9,838)
Fair value change on other derivative ~ Ef T4 ¢/ T E 2 A FEEZ L
financial instruments (Note 34) (Bt 5£34) 378 26,892
297,988 17,054
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12. Profit Before Tax

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

12. BR % A1 % F

2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-—FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit before tax has been arrived at B i AT s B B H B GT AT
after charging (crediting): £ IF
Auditors’ remuneration % E AL B & 3,849 3,392
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments & {8 & 2k 15 # 44 6,370 -
Less: Amount capitalised W TEEIRZ
in construction in progress = N e =t (5,113) =
1,257 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERZXBEBARFEHE
equipment and ponies 8,139 2,355
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEYE BEAXEBEARSIT
plant and equipment and ponies 2 EE (i a) 443 (3)
Operating lease rentals in respects of ~AEME s KEHEM S
rented premises 21,641 16,823
Staff costs (including directors’ BEIRNBEESH)
emoluments)
Salaries, bonuses and other benefits e RHEAMEF 183,104 59,566
Retirement benefits cost (Note 40) RAKIE F) A AS (B 5% 40) 16,407 2,201
Share-based payments expenses, net LA M AEME R &R EHE 50,078 19,362
249,589 81,129
Less: Amount capitalised in investment & : FEEZIR B W ¥ 2 B A1k
properties under construction Gk (6,346) -
Amount capitalised in construction EREIRZEAN SR
in progress (15,830) —
Amount capitalised in properties ERPFEMWEZERL
under development for sale k] (8,715) =
218,698 81,129
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13. Income Tax Expense

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE—

13. TS HEMX

B 75 ¥R & MY &

T —F=A=t+—HILFE

2011 2010
—EB-—F —_E-FTF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET FE T
The income tax expense comprises: FTSHIER X 81 :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RSN
— Current year —RNEZ - (19,109)
Deferred tax (Note 35) i JE B 18 (Fff 7£35) (112,619) (425,085)
Income tax expense for the year FEMBMEMRAX (112,619) (444,194)
No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided as there was no MEFELHRERT AN WEHRE
assessable profit for both years. B RIF L o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BREPRCEMGHETEEMBGRE]D
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the REXEMBBEEHEN B NF
tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 —A—HEBRFTEERNNE QR 2B
onwards. 1SR ER25% ©
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FEMREM Iﬁﬁaﬁi‘i—f ? 2 &
the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of Z B AR ME RO T
comprehensive income as follows:
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Profit before tax B i AT i A 234,543 1,373,801
Tax charge at the domestic income tax &AL FTIS T K25% (—F — T F ¢
rate of 25% (2010: 25%) 25%)stE 2 MBI (58,636) (343,450)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax LB = H B2 H KA 2
purpose BT e 106,621 15,259
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for gt R & i 5 NS MR FH X 2
tax purpose MBEyEE (94,374) (93,777)
Tax effect of intragroup profits SERNGEFM2HBEE 6,490 (21,279)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised YWHEEZR 2 HBBEREB 2 HESE (70,159) (2,283)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) f A 8 K #E R 2 B¢ 1H &5 18
recognised - 3,250
Others HAh (2,561) (1,914)
Tax charge for the year FEHRIE X H (112,619) (444,194)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

14. Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Directors of the
Company for both years, nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period.

15. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based on

the following data:

14 B E

Z BB
fA] B2 o

RRABEEWEKNMNEZZE

5. 8REF(EH)

& A R B 5 2

BHEHRARITERZZIREE

AR TG A S 0 A B8 BRI
B RE TS ERIE

2011 2010
—E-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Earnings (loss) B A (E8)
Earnings for the purpose of basic BFRiATESRELRAZF 2
earnings per share (profit for the BNARBEEAEBEEE
year attributable to owners of the & 7))
Company) 121,924 929,607
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEB#ELBER T E:
shares:
Fair value change on conversion AR ER SR BAETE
option derivatives of convertible TEZRAFEEZS
bonds (297,610) 9,838
Interest on convertible bonds AR E A 2 A B 241,302 222,032
Exchange gain in relation to liability FEREREATBRRKRESBE
component of convertible bonds Az EN KA
recognised in profit or loss (129,818) (6,069)
(Loss) profit for the purpose of diluted FARHE SR ER N Z (Ei8)
earnings per share i ) (64,202) 1,155,408
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE—

15. Earnings (Loss) Per Share — continued

5. 8REBF(EE) &

B 75 ¥R & MY &

T —F=A=t+—HILFE

2011 2010
—E——-F —FE-FF
Number of Number of
shares shares
B EE % 7 E B
Number of shares B & B
Weighted average number of ordinary BRI EESBREKRER 2
shares for the purpose of basic ) Hx A I 15 &
earnings per share 1,225,716,028 1,222,694,074
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary EEBMEERRZFE
shares:
— Share options — B8 B 3,924,091 3,519,483
— Convertible bonds AR ES 560,081,140 405,344,073
Weighted average number of ordinary R R it E G REE RN 2
shares for the purpose of diluted 5 AR AN FE 5 8
earnings per share 1,789,721,259 1,631,557,630
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above HEEEXFINERARSERERARE

for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2011 does not assume the exercise of certain
of the Company’s share options as the exercise price was
higher than the average market price per share for the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2010 did not assume the exercise of the
Company'’s outstanding warrants and certain share options as
the exercise price was higher than the average market price per
share for that year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt %5 ¥R & K

For the year ended 31 March 2011 EZEZ =T ——

FZA=t—HILFE

2

A

16. Property, Plant and Equipment and Ponies 6.V BEERSZEAREET
Properties Furniture,
under  Construction Plant and Leasehold  fixtures and Motor
Buildings development  inprogress  machinery improvements  equipment vehicles Ponies Total
2BY Bg HENE B
L E ng  fBIE L] 2 LERZE hE g @it
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
TR Tin TR Tin T Tin T Tn T
(Note b)
(Mith)
THE GROUP AEE
AT COST A
At 1 April 2009 RZZENE
mA—H - 73,083 = 685 5,060 4,665 3,265 - 86,758
Transfer (Note a) (W) = (1,160) 1,160 = = = = = =
Exchange realignment B - - 6 4 7 17 6 - 10
Additions il - - 318,937 - - 1,686 1,095 - 718
Reclassfied toinvestment ~~ EH A EARE
properties (Note 17) mE(Hs17) = (71923 = - = - = = 7,923)
Disposals e - - - - - (279) - - (278)
At31 March 2010 \ZE-EF
ZR=1-H - - 320,103 689 5,067 6,090 4,366 = 336,315
Exchange realignment ERAE 8 - 50,641 3 i) 1597 1,190 3% 53,970
Additions 210 3,446 - 155,540 - 1,741 62,966 45371 15822 1,685,886
Disposals HE - - = - (1,287) (241) (1,637) - (3,165)
At31 March 2011 RZZ-—-%=§
=1-H 353 - 1927284 m 5,549 70412 49,290 16217 2,073,006
DEPRECIATION g
At 1 April 2009 RZEENE
mA-H - - - 685 2931 2500 1490 = 7606
Exchange realignment R - - - 4 2 13 1 - 20
Provided for the year EERG - - - - 1133 745 417 - 235
Eiminated on disposals HERES = = = - - 0n) - - on)
At31 March 2010 RZZ-2F
ZA=1-H - - - 689 4,066 2,985 1,968 - 9,708
Bxchange reaignment EXAZ 2 - = 3 1 101 109 = 257
Provided for the year ERAR 5 - = - 1312 3,255 3520 = 8,139
Eliminated on disposals HEREH - - - - (819) (126) (1,356) - (2301)
At 31 March 2011 N_E-—-&
ZR=1-H 54 - = m 4571 6,215 4241 = 15,803
CARRYING AMOUNTS BEE
At 31 March 2011 RoB--%
ZA=t-H 3478 - 1,927,284 - 978 64,197 45,049 16217 2,057,203
At31 March 2010 RZZ-TE£=
=0 - - 320,103 - 1,001 3,105 2,398 - 326,607
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

16. Property, Plant and Equipment and Ponies 16.#M ¥ - MERBRHEURE T

— continued

The buildings were located on land held under medium-term
lease and were located in the PRC.

The carrying amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment
of the Group in respect of assets held under finance leases was
HK$55,000 (2010: HK$55,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment and ponies,
other than properties under development and construction
in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Buildings Over the estimated useful life of
20 years, or the unexpired term of
the relevant lease, whichever is
shorter

10% - 20%

Over the estimated useful life of 5 years
or the unexpired term of the relevant
lease, whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% - 33';%

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles 20%
Ponies 14.3%
Note:

(@ Amount represented the construction costs incurred for the
construction of the polo club and theme park which was transferred
from properties under development to construction in progress during
the year ended 31 March 2010.

(b) Asat 31 March 2011, included in the Group's construction in progress
of HK$1,248,395,000 (2010: HK$258,223,000) was the construction
costs, other development expenditure and other attributable expenses
incurred by the Group for the construction of hotel properties. The
remaining balance of HK$678,889,000 (2010: HK$61,880,000)
represented the construction costs, other development expenditure
and other attributable expenses incurred by the Group for the
construction of polo club and theme park. Details of construction and
operation of the polo club and theme park are set out in Note 25(b).
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FRBERFVERERIRNZNE
BRI R S IE ) LA E B0 R T 5%
A

BF T F 2 E AR A Bk
HEBAEHA
(ARG EE B E)

28 KRR 10% —20%

HEMEEE AF 2T A FE A
EHAEESRA
(ARG E B E)

A EBERRZHE 20%—33:%

RE 20%

B 14.3%

B 5 -

@ CHEAREBHRERIBAEMELEZREE
KA ZRERBE_T-—FTF=ZA=+—H
LTHEEHERTVEESRERAERTR -

b) R-ZTE——4¢=ZA=+—H0 BF&EL£E
& TR AY1,248,3950008 (=& — T 4F -
258,223,000 ) AR S E R B E BT Y X
MEEMBERSA HMUBERAIREME
15 5 2 > # 17678,889,000/8 T (= & — T 4 :
61,880,000 ) AASE R EESRERERE
AEMELAZRERES HMBEERX RHEM
BERY -BHRERTBELABRCZEEREEH
1% &R B 3£ 25(0) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

17. Investment Properties

17. 8 EWE

2

HK$'000
F& T
At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFMA—HA 2,419,330
Exchange realignment FE 3, A 19,631
Construction cost incurred FTEAZBERARN 345,924
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BEMNBEERBEEHE 1,205,780
Reclassified from property, plant and EME BERSKEUARECEHHE
equipment and ponies (Note 16) (Mf3E16) 71,923
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBRER 2 A FEE N
profit or loss 1,700,340
At 31 March 2010 RZE—EF=A=+—H 5,762,928
Exchange realignment PE 5, 8 =& 292,985
Construction cost incurred and capitalised FTEAZBZERARERNEAX
expenditure 318,262
Increase in fair value recognised in RIBEERZAFEE N
profit or loss 450,475
At 31 March 2011 R=2——f=ZA=+—H 6,824,650

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2011 and 31 March 2010 has been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, who
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation has been arrived at by adopting the direct comparison
approach by making reference to the sales transactions or
asking price evidences of comparable properties as available in
the active market. Where such information is not available, the
valuer consider information from a variety of sources including
(i) current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments made to account for any differences;
and (ii) the expected total value of the investment properties
under construction assuming the properties are completed,
taking into consideration of the estimated costs to completion
such as construction costs and anticipated developer’s profit
with reference to past experience and committed contracts as
well as allowances for contingencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

B 75 ¥R & MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & Z —ZT——F=—A=1+—HILtFE

17. Investment Properties — continued

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals purpose are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties. All of the Group’s investment properties are under
construction and located on leasehold lands in the PRC under
medium-term leases.

18. Prepaid Lease Payments

17 REWME-E

K;‘%ﬁi%}%m%fﬁ =S A EWA B R 2 AT
EMEEE HULAFEREXFE D
ERINIEREME - REEB 2 2HLEY
ENEZPERHOURFE  AUAFRHEY
BHEZHEE M-

18. AT HERKE

THE GROUP
rEH
2011 2010
—EB-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MHMEBNIEH DM
Current portion TEENER D 6,086 4,137
Non-current portion IEm B D 251,830 161,333
257,916 165,470
2011 2010
—EB-—F —_ET-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
The Group'’s prepaid lease payments AEEBZBHNBEEREDEMR
represent land use right in the PRC R 2 A
and comprise:
Long lease REAHEE 83,474 -
Medium-term lease FEHIEE 174,442 165,470
257,916 165,470

As at 31 March 2011, the amount represented land use rights
acquired at the consideration of RMB222,223,000 (equivalent
to HK$264,445,000) (2010: RMB145,660,000 (equivalent to
HK$165,470,000)) which are held for development of hotel
properties and polo club.

At 31 March 2010, the Group was in the process of obtaining
the land use right certificates for the land use rights of hotel
properties. During the year, the Group has obtained such land
use right certificates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %= & B % 3R & B &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

19. Intangible Assets 19.8FEEE
Club debentures
BffES
HK$'000
TET
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY REBRAEARDT
AT COST A
At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010 and RZZETNLFNA—RB - ZZ—ZF
31 March 2011 —A=+t—BRkR-_ZTE——F=A=+—H 610
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BERRE
At 1 April 2009, 31 March 2010 and RZZBEZNFONA—RA - —FF
31 March 2011 —A=+—HBRkR=ZE——F=ZA=+—8H 520
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2011 R-ZEB-ZF=A=+-HRKR=-B——§
=A=+—H 90
The amount represents the club debentures which are having ZeHREMESF BEERTAFH
an indefinite useful life because they are expected to generate JRA %A 78 1& 25 78 B AT AR IR AR 45 2R 488 A
economic benefit indefinitely. The club debentures are tested me BMEFRF2EMEETRENR

for impairment annually by reference to the market value.

20. Deposits Paid for Acquisition of Property, Plant and  20. E EVE-BRERZBES AR

Equipment
As at 31 March 2011, deposits paid by the Group amounting R—_E——F=ZA=Z+—8B A&EEZE
to approximately HK$41,759,000 (2010: Nil) was mainly in 4% € #941,759,0008 T (Z T —FF : )
relation to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for FERDBEREREEBEEME K
hotel and polo club operation. e
21. Inventories 2.7 8
THE GROUP
AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FF
HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT FHT
Food, beverage and general stores B gEE—RKREE 25,632 -
Polo products BEIRE M 4,951 -
30,583 —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= &

B 75 ¥R & MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & Z —ZT——F=—A=1+—HILtFE

Investments in Subsidiaries 2.HMBRARE
THE COMPANY
AT
2011 2010
—g-—-F& ~T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TE T
Unlisted shares, at cost FELEMARM LK 1,169,111 160,045
Deemed capital contribution in WRAIEEE M E 2 7 (i &%)
subsidiaries (Note) 1,036,525 596,400
2,205,636 756,445
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERRZREEE (139,306) (81,843)
2,066,330 674,602
Note: Deemed capital contribution in subsidiaries represented the s : BIETEMBARIEEKMB AT ZXEEM
adjustments on the carrying amounts of amounts due from BZHE L‘A&B%H%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁkzﬁ qu%'THZY
subsidiaries to reflect their new amortised cost, calculated using B F R A R H AR 4 E (BN E U
effective interest rate and the relevant repayment terms (i.e., the BARIREESFE)

imputed interests on amounts due from subsidiaries).

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2011 and 31 March 2010 are set out in Note 45.
During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Directors of the
Company reviewed the carrying values of the investments.
The recoverable amounts of these investments for the year
are determined with reference to the Directors’ estimate
of discounted future cash flows and net assets of these
investments as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,
impairment loss of HK$57,463,000 (2010: HK$37,984,000)
was fully recognised in the Company’s statement of
comprehensive income.

Properties Under Development for Sale

The Group's properties under development for sale are situated
in the PRC. All properties under development for sale are
carried at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Included in the properties under development for sale as at 31
March 2011 are properties under development for sale which
are not expected to be completed and available for sale within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period amounting
to RMB1,224,497,000, equivalent to HK$1,457,151,000 (2010:
RMB1,167,259,000, equivalent to HK$1,326,006,000).
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RRTPEEWx
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 & —ZT——F=ZA=1+—HILFE

24. Other Assets/Assets Classified as Held for Sale/

Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets Classified
as Held for Sale

At 31 March 2010, assets classified as held for sale represented
the land cost amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to
2010: HK$325,277,000) acquired from XZ/&FIFIEREE
APBRAF Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group Company Limited
(“Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding”) through the acquisition of assets
and liabilities of Goldin Properties (Tianjin) Company Limited
(formerly known as X)EGHREFHERZEBRAF Tianjin
Hi-Tech New Star Property Development Company Limited
("Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property”)) during the year ended
31 March 2009, which would be disposed of within twelve
months subsequent to year ended 31 March 2009 (the
“Disposal”). It was carried at the lower of cost and fair value
less cost to sell. A deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$306,720,000) was received from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding
during the year ended 31 March 2009 and was disclosed as
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for
sale.

Due to the change in property development plan of the
purchaser of such assets during the year ended 31 March 2010,
which has delayed finalisation of the sale and accordingly, the
asset has not been sold by 31 March 2010. As at 31 March
2010, the Group was not able to determine the completion
date of the Disposal, which was subject to the finalisation of
the changed properties development plan by the purchaser.
The Directors considered that (i) the assets were available
for immediate sale in their present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the Disposal; (ii) the
consideration had been substantially received and (iii) actions
required from the purchaser to complete the Disposal indicated
that it is unlikely that significantly changes to the Disposal
would be made. Accordingly, the assets to be disposed of
and the deposit received as mentioned above remained to
be disclosed as assets classified as held for sale and liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale as at 31
March 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z ‘& Bt %5 ¥R & M &£

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

24. Other Assets/Assets Classified as Held for Sale/

Liabilities Directly Associated with Assets Classified
as Held for Sale — continued

At 31 March 2011, the Directors reassessed the probability
of the completion of the Disposal. It was considered that the
Disposal would probably be terminated due to the change
of development plan of the purchaser. Accordingly, the
land accounted for as assets classified as held for sale at the
amount of RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to HK$340,739,000)
is reclassified as other assets under non-current assets. The
deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$321,300,000)
(2010: equivalent to HK$306,720,000) accounted for as
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for
sale is reclassified as deposit received in advance included in
trade and other payables as at 31 March 2011. Details of trade
and other payables are set out in Note 30(c).

M HEMEE FERBEFHE
CEE/BoBAREFEHE
CEEREEEBR 2 ER &
W-Z——4=B=+—-0 FEEH

FEERLEETEZAREE RADE
EEHAEFEEEREE M AT AWK
Bt ARV ASEABEEHEZ
B EZ T AR 286,335,000 7T (18 &
340,739,000 ) EM R B AIERBE E
BTZEMEE - ARV ABRSEAES
EHEZEEBEEBB 2 BEZBEA
[ #270,000,0007T (48 55 74321,300,0007% 7T)
2B (ZE —ZF : HE 7 306,720,000 %
MEFRBEABRIES FARZZE——
FZA=1+—HZENEZRREMENK
T o JE 1 BR K K H b FE < 3R IE B 1 B A M
7+ 30(c) ©

25.Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and 25. B R R HM E W K IE - &
Deposits RERES
THE GROUP
rEE
2011 2010
—B2-——F —FE-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FE T
Trade receivables FE W BR 3K 1,361 1,269
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREEE (1,361) (1,269)
Other receivables and prepayments H b B W 3R 18 K TB S FRIE
(Note a) (Bt 5Ea) 187,267 66,971
Deposits (Note b) =& (ff5Eb) 9,100 192,776
Total trade and other receivables, & W BR 3k N H b fE U FRIE -
prepayments and deposits BNFRERRE BT 196,367 259,747
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

25. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and
Deposits — continued

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, other receivables and
prepayments mainly include (i) the amount of approximately
RMB42,929,000 (equivalent to HK$51,086,000) (2010: equivalent to
HK$48,768,000) which represented receivable from Tianjin Hi-Tech
Property in respect of the corresponding tax liability paid in respect
of waiver of shareholders’ loans in which Tianjin Hi-Tech Property
has agreed to bear upon the acquisition of assets and liabilities
of KZEREEAGM /A A Tianjin Huading Real Estate Company
Limited (“Huading”), a subsidiary acquired during the year ended 31
March 2009. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand; and (ii) prepayments for construction materials of
HK$57,482,000 (2010: Nil).

As at 31 March 2010, included in the Group’s deposits an amount of
RMB 160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$181,760,000) which was acquired
through the acquisition of Huading during the year ended 31 March
2009, was the earnest money paid to KEFFIMNEXEREEZE S
Administrative Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park in respect of
the construction and operation of the polo club and theme park (Note
30(b)). The balance has been settled against the amount due to Tianjin
Hi-Tech Property included in trade and other payables at the amount
of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$190,400,000) during the year
ended 31 March 2011. The amount was unsecured and interest-free.

There are nil balance of trade receivables, net of allowance of
doubtful debts at the end of the reporting period and hence,
no aging analysis is presented.

2

RZF——F=A=+-RAR-F-—FF=
A=t—R HttEERERBENHRELIER
BORRZEFEFHERNKBERZERER

ERAR(ESR] —HREBE=2FZTNLF=
A=+—BLEERBZHBARZEER
EEBRABEAEREREERMEN ZEE
MBEEEMERXESEEHEZRELA
R #42,929,000 7T (18 % 751,086,000 7T) (=
T — T4 {F % 048,768,0008 JT) c % K A
EBEE REREBREE REEDHE
3R 857,482,000 B L (Z T — T4 : ) o

R—_ZE—FTE=-F=1+—HB A&£EKs+
BEEANEBEEZE-TTNF=_A=+—HL
FEWEE S mIE A B A R 160,000,000
7T (F8 % 181,760,000 7)) 2 1R & - 2 XA A
RERREEFTRERIBLAEMARERN
BMEXEREEZEEINZRES (M
30b)) HE-_T——F=ZA=1+—BHLEE"
ZEBCAEENREEREMRRREME
NHRBEBRANENXEESREHERBEARYE
160,000,000 7T (48 5 # 190,400,000 7% JT) ° &% X
BAEEHRERES -

RERK HEREEER  BRER

ZHEBRRT AT EZHREHRD T -

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RREEEH
2011 2010
—g--5& —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAETT
At 1 April RmA—H 1,269 1,269
Exchange realignment ME H 75 & 92 -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,361 1,269
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25. Trade and Other Receivables, Prepayments and

Deposits — continued

The Group’s trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits that are denominated in currencies other than the

B 75 ¥R & MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & Z —ZT——F=—A=1+—HILtFE

25. E W RR X I HL i fE W R IR - T/
TRERZRE-&

LA*HF‘%%l%ﬁ%ﬁ‘fZD}ﬁEf?ﬁ%%&l\Zfﬁ%%
B8 2 7R 5 B R BRI H At B WK AR

functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out BRNRBREEZSHOAT
below:

usbD HKD
Epo BT
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHE T
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=H=+—H 25,906 257
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZFTF=A=+—H - 57

At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, the Company did not
have any other receivables which were denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKD"), a currency other than the functional

currency of the Company.

26. Amount due from a Related Company

R-F——F=H=+—"HAR=-F—FF
ZA=1T—H ARRLEEFEMEK
REREBET(ETDFE BLTELFEAR
BZUREER -

26. EU —E B E 2 5l FIE

Particulars of the amount due from a related company in which NN T % BELABEEERESZ —
Mr. Pan, a Director of the Company, has beneficial interests are MAEAGRBZFBEET
as follows:
THE GROUP
558
Maximum Maximum
amount amount
Balanceat ~ Balanceat  outstanding Balance at Balanceat  outstanding
31.3.201 142010 during 2011 31.3.2010 142009 during 2010
RZB--% WZZ-2F
RoB--F WR-E-2F AMKKE RZZ-3% RZSTNE AHANE
ZA=1-H MA-H $EZ “A=1-H mA-H FBEZ

Name of related company BELmoR

2B 268 RERE 255 268 REHE
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TER TER TR TARL TAL TAL

ERREEANERNARAT ERLABAHKRN

BRAA - - - - 76 76

Goldin Financial Holdings Limited aHé mﬂ(g B)ARAR - - - - 6 156

Matsunichi Goldbase Limited RNBLENTHERERAA - 178 178 178 = 396
- 178 178 82

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ERAZEEEB B RIFERES-

demand.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

27. Amounts due from Subsidiaries/Amounts due to

Subsidiaries

The Company

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest
free. The effective interest rate used to determine the fair value
of these amounts at initial recognition was 5% (2010: 5%)
per annum. The subsidiaries are not expected to repay the
advances within twelve months from the end of the reporting

period and the balances are classified as non-current.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

The Company’s amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts
due to subsidiaries of HK$4,347,703,000 and HK$129,884,000
respectively (2010: HK$4,864,795,000 and HK$129,889,000
respectively) are denominated in HKD, a currency other than

the functional currency of the Company.

28. Entrusted Loan Receivable/Payable

As at 31 March 2011, the Group had a bank loan of
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$ 11,900,000) (2010: Nil)
under an entrusted loan arrangement with a bank pursuant
to which the Company’s two PRC subsidiaries acted as the
entrusting party and the borrower, respectively, and the bank
acted as the lender. The entrusted loan receivable/payable
carried interest at a rate of 4.78% per annum and is repayable
on demand. The balance has been repaid subsequently after

the year end date.

29. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash

Pledged bank deposits

At 31 March 2010, pledged bank deposits represented deposits
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group with maturity of less than three months and were
therefore classified under current assets. During the year, the
pledged bank deposits has been released upon the settlement

of the relevant banking facilities.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

27.

28.

29.

2

)
a#
pin)

EWHB AR RBNERERE S - BE
ETZERERE AR A AFEZE
BEFEKAE%(ZF—FF:5%) Bt
ZEWBARTENREHARET T+ 2@
AREEER MEBEHRESBEAIER

FHWBATRE N EER 2 8REE
SR -

AABZEWH B2 R KB R E MK
B A 7 X B 9 514,347,703,0007% T &
129,884,000 (=T — T F: 7 5l A
4,864,795,0007% 7T F 129,889,000 7T ) T4 LA
RRABZNEEEAIINZEEETIE -

Bl EFEXER

R-_E——F=F=1+—8B A£EERE
BT YHETERZTENRITER S
A KR #10,000,0007T (48 % 7 11,900,000/% 7T)
(ZE—ZF:8) BREZTERLH &
RAMEFENBARSIEAZT A R
BRACRITAUEAERA B ERN
ZHREFIRFRNRLIT8% T B RILESNE
B -ZERAEBEREEBRREER-

EEMBITER RTEER
BE

EEFRITERK

R-E—TF=ZA=+—0 BEMART
ERVEERFRIZER ARBET
AEEZHHELREZEAZRITHE
BUBABRAEDEE -FR BEMR
IEREREREWRTRERRRIER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

29. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash - 29. B HETER HRITEER
continued RE&E—&
Pledged bank deposits — continued EEBRITEFER—E
The Group's pledged bank deposits that are denominated NEAEEER2NEEBEARBAIINZ
in currencies other than RMB, the functional currency of the B AREM 2 AEE 2B HARITF W
relevant group entities are set out below: T
usbD
E
HK$'000
FHET
Pledged bank deposits EHEBRITER
At 31 March 2011 R-ZZE——F=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2010 R-ZE—ZF=A=+—H 6,726

At 31 March, 2010, the pledged deposits carried fixed interest
rate of 0.01% per annum.

R-E-—ZEF=A=+—H EE#AER
REEFMEO%AE -

Bank balances and cash RITEFRRE
The Group’s bank balances and cash are denominated in NEAEEBERZNETEBEARB AN
currencies other than RMB, the functional currency of the EMABBNZAEB 2R TEFRR SN
relevant group entities are set out below: I
usbD HKD
Ere B T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHE T FHE T
Bank balances and cash RITEFRRS
At 31 March 2011 RZZE——F=H=+—H 13,188 18,046
At 31 March 2010 RZZE-—ZFEF=H=+—H 6,954 1,305
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

29. Pledged Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and Cash - 29. EE B BT HER BT EEFER

continued Re—#&

Bank balances and cash — continued WITHEERRE—E&

The Company’s bank balances and cash are denominated NERBZNEEEEAREUNINZER,R
in currencies other than RMB, the functional currency of the BUZARRRTEFRBESNOT :

Company are set out below:

usbD HKD
E BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRER®
At 31 March 2011 N _E——F=A=+—H 36 17,656
At 31 March 2010 RZZE-—ZF=A=+—H 2 1,025
All bank balances carry interest at market rates which range 2HRITEFRTSANNEAE BEXR
from 0.01% t0 0.40% (2010: 0.01% to 1.98%) per annum. F0.01%E040%( =T — T F:001% %
1.98%) e
30. Trade and Other Payables 30. B BR R H fth FE 4 :K 1B
An aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting RBEBRR BNERZERSITOT
period is set out as follows:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Xx5E N
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--% C—Z-TF ZBE--f C—ZT-ITF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FERT TET
0-90 days 0Z90H 703,758 318,433 - =
91 - 180 days 91£180H - - - -
Over 180 days 180 B MA £ 1,774 1,654 - -
Total trade payables JE 1 BR 5 48 48 705,532 320,087 - =
Retention payables (Note a) FERRE TRFAM ) 171,468 52,282 - -
Dividend payable JERT IR B 1,102 1,102 1,102 1,102
Other payables (Note b) H o B 2R (B 5EDb) 171,562 692,177 505 600
Deposit received in advance (Note ©) ~ FBU 1R 2 (Ff 55 c) 321,300 = - =
1,376,964 1,065,648 1,607 1,702

@ Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011 SIRMEEIRAR AT F 2011



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %=

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE—

30. Trade and Other Payables — continued

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Retention payables are expected to be paid after twelve months from
the end of the reporting period upon the expiry of the retention
periods according to the respective contracts.

As at 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, the amount mainly
represented (i) consideration payable of RMB89,912,000 (equivalent
to HK$106,996,000) (2010: RMB99,912,000 (equivalent to
HK$113,500,000)) in relation to the acquisition of a wholly-owned
subsidiary, Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin Investment Company Limited
("Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin”) during the year ended 31 March 2009;
Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin has been mergered with Goldin Properties
(Tianjin) Company Limited during the year ended 31 March 2011; (i)
advance from Tianjin Hi-Tech Property as at 31 March 2010, in respect
of the construction and operation of the polo club and theme park,
amounting to RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$181,760,000)
with effective interest rate at 21% up to 31 December 2009, which
has been settled against deposit paid to X &7 H: 77 ¥ B 2 & 18
Z 82 Administrative Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park
included in trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits
at the amount of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$190,400,000)
during the year ended 31 March 2011 (Note 25(b)); (iii) an obligation
to acquire minority interests of RMB190,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$215,840,000) as at 31 March 2010 in relation to a forward
contract to further acquire the remaining equity interest of 48.72% of
a subsidiary, Huading, from XFZ&HRREREKRHBRAF Tianjin
Hi-Tech Technology Development Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech
Development”). During the year, the Group acquired the remaining
48.72% equity interest in Huading from Tianjin Hi-Tech Development;
and (iv) consideration payable of RMB115,660,000 (equivalent to
HK$131,390,000) in respect of land use rights acquired during the
year ended 31 March 2010, which has been fully settled during the
year ended 31 March 2011. The above amounts in (i) to (iv) were
unsecured and repayable on demand.

Deposit received in advance represented the deposit of
RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$321,300,000) (2010: Nil) received
from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding reclassified from liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2011.
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
Details of reclassification of liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale is set out in Note 24.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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R-ZB-——F=A=+—HAR_F—ZF=
A=+—8" ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁiﬁﬁ()ﬁ’\ﬁi*”
EAF=ZA=+—BLEFEARKBEZ2EN
BRAXREEFZESRREBRARITRES

ZEEmiR)ZEMRE ARS9,912,00075T (48
%%mm%mm%ﬁﬂzifiirAE%
99,912,000 7T (48 & # 113,500,000/ 7T.)) : K&
BESHRERBE-_ZT——F=H=+—8
I FE B RS R ECKE)ERQFE M )
RZE—ZTF=-ZA=Z+-—"BREZEHEEHE
REREREEEREREIELAERHZIER
A R 160,000,000t (16 % 74 181,760,000/ 7T)
BE-ZZAF+ A=+ HEREBM=X
2% B RBE-_FT——F=A=+—HB1
FEBFETEERERR R E M ERRIE - &
NHRBEREEAZENREZTRNELE R
BB Z B EgKE ARM160,000,0007T (10 F R
190,400,000 7% 7T ) & 5 (Mt £ 25(b)) : (i) = &
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BHOBERARTRZERNEERDBEINE
—HNBRARESHBRTI8NRBEZESRE
#) 2 WiE 2 Uk R 2 & £ A K %5 190,000,000
70 (#8 5 14215,840,0008 70) - F R NEE [
KESRBEBEREREESH T48.72% MR E

v REBEE-_FT—ZTF=ZA=Z+—A8 1t
FERBzIHEREMENZRBARE
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

30. Trade and Other Payables — continued N.ENERRREMEMNRIE—E
The Group's trade and other payables that are denominated DN EE TR EEUIIN s BEE RS
in currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant M2 AEERMNERREAMENRERNT

group entities are set out below:

usb HKD
E BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 31 March 2011 R-ZE——F=A=+—H 15 8,856
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZFTF=A=+—H 1,560 7,368
The average credit period on purchases of goods was 75 days. BEERmzTHREEHRRISH KAEEFK
The Group had financial risk management policies in place to A SRR B IR BUR - DA B OR 2 8 A AR
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe. HREEHRNEER-
The Company’s other payables that are denominated in INARARINEEB U2 BB RBBEN 2K
currencies other than the functional currencies of the Company AR HEMBENKRIELT
are set out below:
HKD
T
HK$'000
FAT
At 31 March 2011 R-FE——F=H=+—H 1,551
At 31 March 2010 N_E—FF=H=+—H 1,645
31. Amounts due to Related Companies NENBERARRE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
Xx5E YN
2011 2010 2011 2010
“§--% —Z-% —g--% C—T-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER THET
Matsunichi Communications MEEAREBERAA
(Hong Kong) Limited - 44,381 - 44,381
Good Vantage Trading Limited EREHERAT 10,769 - - =
RAYBEER(RINER LA MBEEERECRI)
BRRA 35,700 - - -
46,469 44,381 - 44,381
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

31. Amounts due to Related Companies — continued 31.

Matsunichi Communications (Hong Kong) Limited, Good
Vantage Trading Limited and #2 B (15 2 R OX I B R A &)
are ultimately owned by Mr. Pan, who has controlling interest
in the Company.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

The Group’s and the Company’s amounts due to related
companies that are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities is set out

ENBEEXARER-&

MEBEREB)BERAR EREH5AR
ARBARMRBEBERCRINDER 2 A HE
EERKER MELTERARARERE
) 4 &R o

o

ZEFRBADERT RERREREE

A

REBRARFAEHES TR E
Mo LS 2 B R B Y Y BB A R R
m

below:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEME b NN
usD HKD usb HKD
Ep & T ES BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T FHE T FHET
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F
=A=+—H 10,769 - - -
At 31 March 2010 RZE—LF
=A=+—H - 44,381 - 44,381
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

32. Obligations Under Finance Leases

RHMEHNEBSK

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEXAHEHE BEXNHEEZRE
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--% C—EZ-TF CZE--f C—ZT-%f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FTERT TET
THE GROUP r&
Amounts payable under finance leases: RIEBEHERN 2 &8 -
Within one year —FR 114 62 68 44
In the second to fifth year inclusive F-EERF
(BREEMF) 341 96 282 94
455 158 350 138
Less: Future finance charges BAKBEER (105) (20) - -
Present value of lease obligations HERBK HE 350 138 350 138
Less: Amount due for settlement B —ERIBERRE
within one year (68) (44)
Amount due for settlement after —ERINBEENS
one year 282 94
The lease terms are five years. Interest rates are fixed at the HEFHARF - FERITZUAHNBHE
contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and E-FMAEHEHARRAEEERERE U8
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental IV ERAEA N ARABE 228
payments.
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33. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

B 75 ¥R & MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 & Z —ZT——F=—A=1+—HILtFE

JaREF(BELBBETE

Derivatives)

On 28 August 2007, convertible bonds with an aggregate
principal value of approximately HK$1,418,704,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds due 2012") were issued by the Company.
The convertible bonds are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The convertible bonds are unsecured, carry interest
at 7.5% per annum and will mature on 28 August 2012.
Interest is repayable semi-annually after the date of issue of
the convertible bonds. The effective interest rate is 20% per
annum. The Convertible Bonds due 2012 with principal value
of HK$35,042,940 were converted into 10,012,259 ordinary
shares of the Company during the year (Note 36).

On 21 January 2011, convertible bonds with an aggregate
principle value of approximately HK$4,911,339,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds due 2014") were issued by the Company.
The convertible bonds are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The convertible bonds are unsecured, carry interest at 8%
per annum and will mature on 21 January 2014. Interest is
repayable semi-annually after the date of issue of convertible
bonds. The effective interest rate is 19.41% per annum.

The proceeds received from the issue of the convertible bonds
had been split into liability component, conversion option
derivative, and equity participants reserve, if any. The excess
of the fair value of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 to all
bond holders over the proceeds received from the issue of
convertible bonds was debited to equity participant reserve.
The liability component and the conversion option derivatives
of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 and the Convertible Bonds
due 2014 are both measured at fair value on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

BABRREHF(BRELABLPESTE
TR -&

33. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option
Derivatives) — continued

AgEEscAERORABBETET
ERFRZEHUWT

The movements of the liability component and conversion
option derivatives of the convertible bonds for the year are set
out as below:

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
REERALT
Convertible Bonds due 2014
“E-MEYHTARES

Convertible Bonds due 2012
ZE-CEHHTRRES

Conversion Conversion
Liability option Liability option
component derivative Sub-total  component derivative Sub-total Total
BEDR FRBEMEIA Nt BEDR HRDETEIA gt gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr T Thr ThL ThL ThL
At 1 April 2009 RZZENE
mA-H 1,142,958 396,715 1539673 - - - 1539673
Interest expenses X 22,032 = 22,032 = = = 22,03
Interest paid BEfFE (106,402) = (106,402) = = = (106,402)
Bichange gain recognised in -~ 148 25 1 B 2 4
profit or loss E 5 s (6,069) - (6,069) - - - (6,069)
Exchange realignment AR 6,069 2,106 8,175 - - - 8,175
Changes in fair value ATEZEY - 9838 9838 = = = 9,838
At 31 March 2010 RZE-%E=§
==F 1,258,588 408,659 1,667,247 = - - 1,667,247
lssue of convertible bonds ~~ E7 AT AR % - - - 3,757,752 1,103,590 4,861,342 486134
Interest expenses MK 241302 - 241,302 130,046 - 130,046 371,348
Interest paid EfRHE (105,989) - (105,988) - - = (105,988)
Exchange gain recognised in -~ FME 2 R R £
profit or loss IE 5 (62,335) = (62,335) (67,483) = (67,483) (129,818)
Exchange realignment ERAZ 62,335 17,506 79,841 67,483 13,031 80,514 160,355
Changes in fair value ATEZED = (64,054) (64,054) - (233,556) (233,556) (297,610)
Convertedduring the year £ 14
~byissue of 10,012,259 -EREN
ordinary shares 10,012,259 %
(Note 36) *ER
(M 36) (34,918) (12,818) (47,736) - - = (47,736)
At 31 March 2011 RoE--%
ZAzt-A 1,358,984 349,293 1,708,277 3,887,798 883,065 4,770,863 6,479,140
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

33. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are set out as
follows:

Convertible bonds due 2012

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the convertible bonds will be
converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
on any business day during the period between the third
anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible bonds and
the maturity date, at an initial conversion price of HK$6 per
share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price shall be adjusted downwards on the
date falling 6 months from the date of issue of the convertible
bonds and every 6 months thereafter (the “Reset Date”) to the
arithmetic average price of the Company’s share for each of
the 30 consecutive trading days immediately prior to the Reset
Date, provided that the adjusted conversion price shall never
be below HK$3.50, subject to the customary adjustments such
as for sub-divisions, consolidation and reductions in the share
capital of the Company.

On 27 August 2008, 27 February 2009 and 27 August 2009,
the conversion price has been reset to HK$5.86, HK$4.08 and
HK$3.50 per share, respectively.

Redemption

No convertible bonds may be redeemed by the Company and
the holders prior to the maturity date. Any convertible bonds
which remain outstanding by 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
the maturity date shall be redeemed by the Company at 115%
of its then outstanding principal amount.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

33. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

Convertible bonds due 2012 — continued

Redemption - continued

The conversion option derivative is carried at fair value at
the end of each reporting period with change in fair value
recognised in profit and loss. At 31 March 2011 and 31 March
2010, the fair values of the conversion option derivative in the
convertible bonds are HK$349,293,000 and HK$408,659,000
respectively, and are calculated using the Binominal model.
Details of the variables and assumptions of the model are as
follows:

2

BABERES(BELGHAETE

TR -&

—E-_FIHUBRRES &
FEE-&
ﬁ:ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁizﬁiﬁ%i&iﬁﬁﬂiz
BIER ATFEZEHRIEBEZTAER
—E——Ff=ZA=Z=+—RAk=ZF— f¢
=A=+—8 ABREHFZ K BRBEST
S TEZRAFEESD %U7%349293000/%71:&
408,659,000 70 JHIA AR A E
ZEANFMAZHRBERAT

31 March 2011 31 March 2010

g——F —E-TF

ZA=+—-B =A=+-—H

Share price (B HK$4.0258 T HK$3.50% 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$3.5058 T HK$3.50% 7T
Remaining life T & F B 1.41 years 2.41 years
Risk-free rate mEk S X 0.44% 0.96%
Expected volatility T8 21K 1R 44.0% 52.0%
Expected dividend yield T8 A AR B I 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the grant date
for previous three years.

Convertible bonds due 2014

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the convertible bonds will be
converted into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company on
any business day from the period commencing on the 30th day
from and excluding the date of issue of the convertible bonds
and ending on the 10th day prior to and excluding the maturity
date (both dates inclusive), at an initial conversion price of
HK$6 per share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price shall be adjusted downwards on the
Reset Date thereafter to the arithmetic average price of the
Company'’s share for each of the 30 consecutive trading days
immediately prior to the Reset Date, provided that the adjusted
conversion price shall never be below HK$4.80, subject to the
customary adjustments such as for sub-divisions, consolidation
and reductions in the share capital of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% &

BF 5 ¥R & MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 &2 - ——F=—A=1+—HILtFE

33. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

Convertible Bonds due 2014 — continued

Redemption

No convertible bonds may be redeemed by the Company and
the holders prior to the maturity date. Any convertible bonds
which remain outstanding by 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on
the maturity date shall be redeemed by the Company at 100%
of its then outstanding principal amount.

The conversion option derivative is carried at fair value at
the end of each reporting period with change in fair value
recognised in profit and loss. At 31 March 2011 and 21
January 2011, the fair values of the conversion option
derivative in the Convertible Bonds are HK$883,065,000 and
HK$1,103,590,000 respectively, and are calculated using the
Binominal model. Details of the variables and assumptions of
the model are as follows:

BABERES(BELGHAETE

THR)-&

—E-NFIHAUBRESZ-&
g [
AARERBHEBEATEREE B AED TR
BEH - EAREPEETTFOE=+5(F
BEBBARTEZ2IRKRESFEHRAR
AR ERRITEARESE 2100% F LAEE -

%%@ﬁﬁ@éﬁilﬁﬁzki& /ﬁﬂﬂEZﬁ?
BIER AFE2EZHREZRNER-
:;?——E_ﬂ_wL—E&f?——E
—AZ+— B ABRBREFZHABRBES
£ T E 2R AF{ESD R 883,065,000 7T &
1,103,590,000/8 7t YA — B AR A FHE -
ZEXNMAEHEBREREOT

31 March 2011 21 January 2011

—F——-F —E %

=A=+—H —AZ=Z+—H

Share price % (8 HK$4.023& 7T HK$4.63 % 7T
Exercise price TE(E HK$6.0 3% 7T HK$6.0 % 7T
Remaining life T &4 & Hf 2.8 years 3 years &
Risk-free rate & E ke 8 X 1.04% 0.98%
Expected volatility 8 AR 1R 55.3% 50.4%
Expected dividend yield 78 HA % B Uk =% 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the grant date
for previous three years.

As at 31 March 2011, the total principal amount of
the outstanding Convertible Bonds due 2012 was
HK$1,383,661,000, of which, Mr. Pan and Goldin Group
(Investment) held approximately HK$7,338,000 and
HK$1,318,269,000, respectively. Upon full conversion of
the Convertible Bonds due 2012 at the conversion price of
HK$3.50 per share (as adjusted on 27 August 2009), 2,096,572
shares and 376,648,194 shares will be issued to Mr. Pan
and Goldin Group (Investment), respectively. Goldin Group
(Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial.
Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the
convertible bonds held by Goldin Group (Investment).
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—E - —FIHUBRRESFELBRES
3508 T(R=_ZEEANFNA=-+LEH
KABR)VEZHAZABE 55 RExLE
FeiREBEKRAE) 172,096,572 1% i 17
376,648,194 ik - M =—_ZE——F = A
=t+—H SREEFEE BHSRS @M
ERFAI10% Al FLEWRAEES
REBRBE)FEZ2IBRBES 2Em -

SIRMEZERAR AR F3, 2011



e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & Bt #5 ¥R & M 3

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

33. Convertible Bonds (Including Conversion Option

Derivatives) — continued

As at 31 March 2011, the total principal amount of
the outstanding Convertible Bonds due 2014 was
HK$4,911,339,000, of which, Goldin Group (Investment)
and Matsunichi Goldbase Global (Management) Limited
("Matsunichi Goldbase Global”), held approximately
HK$4,684,603,000 and HK$90,000,000 respectively. Upon
full conversion of the Convertible Bonds due 2014 at the
conversion price of HK$6.00 per share, 780,767,114 shares
and 15,000,000 shares will be issued to Goldin Group
(Investment) and Matsunichi Goldbase Global respectively.
Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin Real
Estate Financial, which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan.
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited was the ultimate holding
company of Matsunichi Goldbase Global, and Mr. Pan was
also a non-executive director, the chairman and the controlling
shareholder of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited. Accordingly,
Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in the convertible bonds
held by Goldin Group (Investment) and Matsunichi Goldbase
Global.

34. Other Derivative Financial Instruments

2

. TERREH(EELBHENTE
TR -&
B

—E——F=ZA=+—H HEARIE
PE—NFRHPABRRESFZBLL S
%8 /4,911,339,0008 7L © £ 5 Bl A= R
EEMUEB)RNBSERRKER)ERAD
AMRASERKDEAZEFEENA
4,684,603,0007% 7T 5 90,000,000 7T ° & —
T — DU 4F BI| B 7] R AR fE 5 4R K A (B B 1%6.00
BTEZHEAAR BoilRAmRERGR
B) R E & HEIRIKE 17780,767,114 8% %
7 % 15,000,000 & B 15 - & IRE B (& &) A
SRS R EE A 100% © M= iR & Bl i &
E‘Jm;ﬁﬁiﬁﬁmo‘%o‘ﬁ‘fﬁi\%ﬂ(‘@ﬁl)ﬁ
NAAMBSERKOREZERA A
éﬁ%im%ﬁiﬁimm(%%l)*ﬁﬁﬁ TE’J
EHNITEE  ERBITEBRBR ALt &
EEWBREBESRERHEB) AR S
ERKFEZABLBRES 2%

U HMpTESERMIA

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
b8 | b UNC
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--% <ZZT-% —Z--§ CZT-EZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHEL TR THET
Warrants PR - 378 - 378
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
XEE A UN
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E--% -T-ZTF CZE--F —ZT-IZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTET TRT TET

BUTE5:

Presented as:

FRBAME

Non-current liabilities

_ 378 - 378
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

34. Other Derivative Financial Instruments — continued BEMBTESEM T A&

As at 31 March 2010, 117,143,353 units of warrants were
outstanding. At 31 March 2010, the fair value of the warrants
amounted to HK$378,000 and was calculated using the
Binomial model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

R—ZZTE—ZTF=A=+—H8" 117,143,353
PRBREFHARTE R —ZF=A
=+—H REEEZQFEAE378,000%
o DU ZHEHARAFE ZEX 28 A
HEMT

31 March 2010

—EF-FF

=A=+—H”

Share price A% (& HK$3.50/% 7T
Exercise price 1TEB HK$6.00/% 7T
Expected volatility TEERR IR 35.7%
Remaining life Tl FHA 0.4 yearstF
Risk free rate R [ B R 0.15%
Expected dividend yield TEARAR S e 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the grant date
for previous three years.

The Binominal model had been used to estimate the fair
value of the warrants. The variables and assumptions used in
comprising the fair value of warrants were based on Director’s
best estimate. The value of a warrant varied with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

As at 31 March 2010, warrants would be settled by the
Company'’s equity shares and was therefore classified as non-
current liabilities. As the subscription rights attaching to the
warrants were expired and lapsed following the last day of the
exercise period on 28 August 2010, nil balance of warrants was
noted as at 31 March 2011.
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35. Deferred Tax Liabilities

The movements in major deferred tax liabilities recognised

BIELEHEBEEE

2

ERAZEORRIBEERELBRZEHN

during the year are as follows: N

Revaluation

of investment

properties

REVMEER

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2009 R-ZETAEMA—H 292,886

Exchange realignment E 5 A% 1,556

Charge to profit or loss (Note 13) Rz PR E13) 425,085

At 31 March 2010 R-ZE—ZFF=ZA=+—H 719,527

Exchange realignment E 3 & 37,015

Charge to profit or loss (Note 13) B & PR EE13) 112,619

At 31 March 2011 R=ZB-——F=A=+-—8H 869,161
At 31 March 2011, the Group had unused tax losses of RZE——F=A=+—H KAEEXHY

HK$356,257,000 (2010: HK$75,621,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the tax
losses are losses of HK$212,002,000 (2010: HK$12,319,000)
that will expire within five years from the end of the reporting
period. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely. There
were no other significant temporary differences arising during

the year or at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2011, the Company had unused tax losses of
HK$64,862,000 (2010: HK$63,301,000) available for offset
against future profits. The losses may be carried forward
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to unpredictability of future

profit streams.
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36. Share Capital 36. it A<
Number of shares Share capital
RAEE BRA
2011 2010 2011 2010
e “E2--§ _T-IZE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt & THER THT
Ordinary shares of SRMEESELL
HK$0.05 each LER
Authorised: EE
At 1 April and 31 March REA—BKR=A
S+=1E 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRER:
At 1 April KM A—H 1,222,782,293  1,222,582,293 61,139 61,129
Issue of new shares upon THRERERT
exercise of share options D (a) 2,157,280 200,000 108 10
Issue of new shares upon R M B EHET
conversion of convertible R (M E33)
bonds (Note 33) (b) 10,012,259 - 501 -
At 31 March R=B=+-8 1,234,051,832  1222,782,293 61748 61,139
Notes: Bt 3% -

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2011, 2,157,280 (year ended 31
March 2010: 200,000) new shares of HK$0.05 each in the Company
were issued at a price of HK$3.30 (year ended 31 March 2010:
HK$1.32) per share upon exercise of share options granted on 3
August 2009 (year ended 31 March 2010: share options granted on
28 September 2005).

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the convertible bondholders
converted principal value of HK$35,042,940 into 10,012,259 ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each at the conversion price of HK$3.50.

All of the new shares issued rank pari passu with the existing
shares in issue in all respects.

(a)

BE-T——F=A=1+—HLFE R=Z
THENAZBELZERE@EBE=Z—%
FZA=Z+—BLEFE - R-_TETHAFNA
ZHNBEEZERE)TER  BERSKR330
BLT(EBE-_Z—TF-A=+—HALFE:
1328 70) 2 B BEITAR A A2,157,280 R (B =
—ZT—TF=HA=+—HIEFE :2000000)
TR @ E0.05B T H M -

BE-_Z——F=A=+—"RLFE TaK
BEEHBEACRABREISOBTHRASE
35,042,940 7T 410,012,259 % % % T {80.05)8
T2 EREM -

FAREAZHBARE ERRASE
GUTELIEL £ 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

37. Reserves
The Group

2

37. %1%

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 48.

KEH
AREBzHEEEZHABCHRE
EHKRFA8H -

e
S
o
e
T
)
Rl

Equity participants reserve represents the excess of the fair BAZ2EAFHEERNEZBREZRT 2 _Z
value of the Convertible Bonds due 2012 to all shareholders ——FIHHABRRESF DT EEHNET
over the proceeds received from the issue of Convertible Bonds —E - FINHAURRESFAERIEBERE
due 2012, gain on the surrender which was granted to an EEENFEFT—AZ+TOBEETARF
existing shareholder of the Company as at 24 November 2008, —HEARE 2R EN RS HENNEE
gain/loss on sale of certain assets/liabilities to a Director and SEBET—BARRESRIERBRE 2K
controlling shareholder of the Company and conversion of wm EBAREBR T - F AT RR
convertible bonds due 2012. (EE
The Company P/ NGNS
Share-based Equity Capital Retained profits
Share compensation participants  redemption  Translation  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
. Bt RASEA Bx RERA R
RiEE HeRfE it RO RERRE  (RTER) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr T T T T T T
At 1 April 2009 RZZENE
MA-H 2,962,745 21,307 (255,560) 173 166,405 912,470 3,813,540
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - (153,949) (153,949)
Other comprehensive income A& £ 2
for the year WA - - - - 177,119 - 177,119
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE 2 AU
(expense) for the year (Bx)es = = = = 177,119 (153,949) 23,170
Recognition of equity-setled B MK ALEE R
share-hased payments WD BER
3 - 19,612 - - - - 19612
Evercise of share options EERE 339 (85) = = = = 254
Lapse of share options BREEW - (250) - - - - (250)
At31 March 2010 RZE2-Z2£=]
=t-H 2,963,084 46,584 (255,560) 173 343,524 758,521 3,856,326
Loss for the year EEER = = = - - (579,407) (579,407)
Other comprehensive income A E £ 82
for the year WA - - - - 550,756 - 550,756
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE 2 AU A
(expense) for the year (Ax)e% - - - - 550,756 (579,407) (28,657)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BEANRAEE R
share-based payments NRHBER
ik - 50,078 - - - - 50,078
Exercise of share options EERE 11,748 4,736) - - - = 7012
Lapse of share options BREXN - (1,899) - - - 1,895 -
Conversion of convertible bonds 5 4] 4 [} (& % 47235 - 4,986 - - (4.986) 47235
At 31 March 2011 R=B--%
ZR=t-8H 3,022,067 90,031 (250,574) 173 894,280 176,023 3,932,000

®
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

Reserves — continued

The Company — continued

At 31 March 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated under Section 79B of the Companies
Ordinance, consisted of retained profits of HK$176,023,000
(2010: HK$758,521,000).

Share-Based Payments

The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
participants.

Under the share option scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options as an incentive to selected
participants, including Directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company at the price
determined by the Directors of the Company, but shall not be
lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares. The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company on
the date of adopting the Scheme. An option may be exercised
at any time within ten years from the date, upon payment of
HK$1 on acceptance.

The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme may
be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer by the
grantee. The vesting and exercisable period of the share option
granted is determinable at the entire discretion of the Board of
Directors but the exercisable period will not exceed a period of
ten years immediate after acceptance of grant.
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38. Share-Based Payments — continued BURMDAEBRZAR—E
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share TERBEEFAARRBEREZFBERED
options and movements in such holdings during the year: REEZEE:
Details of share options held by employees (other than HARAIEB(ESHRINBEE 2EREF
Directors) of the Company are as follows: BT ¢
Number of share options
FlERE
Subscription price per share Appointed
SRIEE asadirector  Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Before After Outstanding during during during during Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment Exercisable period at14.2010  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear at31.3.2011
R-2-%F £ it S
BA-H Bzt ZA=t-A
RILAS L] BEE TR HR{TE RES FACEE FREAE  FRSAM  HAGR
HKS HKS
iy i
(Note 1 and
(Note 1) Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4)
(1R
(R3E) fi3k2) (W3) (W)
5.2.2004 1.30 120 5.2.2005t04.2.2014 672,630 = = = = 672,630
“TEMECARA “ZTRE_ARAZ
—Z-PE_ARA
20.4.2004 1.54 142 204.2004t0 19.4.2014 567,783 = = = = 567,783
ZTENEMAZTA ZREINEMAZTRE
“2-REMATAE
28.9.2005 143 1.32 28.9.20051027.9.2015 1,421,050 = = = - 1,421,050
“ERREAAZTI\R “ETREAACT\RE
“B-REAACTLH
27.11.2007 = 6.56 27.11.2007 t026.11.2017 8,000,000 = = = - 8,000,000
ZERHET-ACTtA ZERHET-ACTHAR
B tE+—15H
3.8.2009 = 330 3.82010t02.8.2019 3,516,000 (660,000) - (1,130640)  (360,000) 1,365,360
ZTENENAZR ZE-T)\A=RE
“2-NENAZR
3.8.2009 = 330 3820110282019 3,516,000 (660,000) = = (525,000) 2,331,000
“ZENEN\A=H “F——4)\A=RZE
“2-NENAZR
3.8.2009 = 330 3820120282019 4,688,000 (880,000) = = (700,000) 3,108,000
ZTENENAZR ZF-CE\AZRE
“2-NENAZR
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

38. Share-Based Payments — continued BURMDAEBRZAR—E
Number of share options
EREHA
Subscription price per share Appointed
BHRIEE asadirector  Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Before After Outstanding during during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment Exercisable period at142010  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear at31.3.2011
H-2-2% 2 R=B-—-%
mA-A Bz ZR=1-H
it B R HRE RS HATE REZ FRERE FREMR FREXAN  HAGR
HK$ HK$
i i
(Note 1 and
(Note 1) Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4)
(B3E1 R
(Bt zE1) f3t2) (W3) (W)
2142010 - 317 21420110 20.4.2020 - - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000
“T-FFRA=T-A ZF-—FPAzt-BE
“ECTEMAZTA
21.4.2010 - 317 214201210 20.4.2020 - - 4,500,000 - - 4,500,000
“E-ZEMA-T-A 1) oy
“ECTEMAZTA
21.4.2010 - 317 214.2013020.4.2020 - - 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000
“2-EEMACT-H Z5-ZEMAZT-HBE
“2CREMACTA
10.8.2010 - 375 10.8.2011109.8.2020 - - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
ZZ-2E\ATA “EZ—4\AtHE
ZEZEN\ANA
10.8.2010 - 375 10.8.2012109.8.2020 - - 1,200,000 - - 1,200,000
ZZ-2E\ATA ZE-CEN\ATHE
ZEZEN\ANA
10.8.2010 - 375 10.8.2013t09.8.2020 - - 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
ZE-2E\ATA “E-=EN\ATHE

“2_REN\ANA

22,381,463 (2,200,000) 19,000,000  (1,130,640) (1,585,000) 36,465,823

Weighted average
exercise price
METEE HK$A.23%T HKS3.30ATT HK$329%T HKS330AT HK$330E7T HKS38TET
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HEZE =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

38. Share-Based Payments — continued

Details of share options held by the Directors of the Company
are as follows:

2

A

BURBARER ZNR-—&

HARREEREZEREFBO T :

Number of share options
BREZR
Subscription price per share Appointed
SRIEE asadirector  Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Before After Outstanding during during during during Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment Exercisable period at142010  theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear at31.3.2011
W-%-%% £ it S
BA-H Bz ZA=t-A
RiAH L] AR% GEH HRITE REE FRORE  FREAE  FAEAR HAGE
HK$ HKS
A A
(Note 1 and
(Note 1) Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 4)
GEIN
(K1) GEY) (W3) (W)
3.8.2009 = 330 3.82010t02.8.2019 1,080,000 660,000 = (925,820) = 814,180
ZTENENAZR “2-ZE/\A=R%
“2-NENAZR
3.8.2009 = 330 3820110282019 1,080,000 660,000 = = - 1,740,000
“ZENEN\AZR “F——4\A=RZ%
“2-NENAZR
3.8.2009 = 330 3820120282019 1,440,000 880,000 = = - 2,320,000
ZTENENAZR “2-"E/\A=R%
“2-NENAZR
108.2010 = 375 108.2011109.8.2020 = = 600,000 = = 600,000
ZZ-2EN\ATA “E—4\AtAE
“2-ZE)\ANR
10.8.2010 = 375 108.2012 10 9.8.2020 = = 600,000 = = 600,000
“2-2E)\ATH “2-CE)\ATR%
Z2-ZE)\ANR
108.2010 = 375 108.2013109.8.2020 = = 800,000 = = 800,000
ZE-ZEN\ATA “2-=E/\ATR%
Z2-ZE)\ANR
3,600,000 2,200,000 2,000,000 (925,820) - 6374180
Weighted average
exercise price
MELGTER HK$330E7T HKS33087 HKI3T5%7 HKS330B T - HK$343%T

@ Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

38. Share-Based Payments — continued BURMDAEBRZAR—E
Details of share options held by other participants of the HARAREMB2EEFE 2 BREFBWN
Company are as follows: I
Number of share options
BREHE
Subscription price per share
SHRRE Granted Exercised Lapsed
Before After Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment Exercisable period at1.4.2010 the year the year theyear  at313.2011
R-g-%% R-%2--%
mA-A ZR=1-H
RAiEH L] ElL HAGE  FRERY  FREAE  FAEEX BA{THE
HK$ HKS
i i
(Note 1 and
(Note 1) Note 2) (Note 4)
(B3t 1R
(1) i3 2) (Rtit4)
5.2.2004 130 120 52.2005t04.2.2014 2,651,875 - - - 2,657,875
“TIME_ARA “EERECARAR
“Z-mE-ARA
20.4.2004 1.54 142 204.2004t0194.2014 367,695 = = = 367,695
“EZTMEMAZTH “ZIMENA_THE
ZZ-MERATAA
38.2009 - 330 3820100282019 2,205,000 - (100,820) - 2,104,180
ZZENENAZA “Z-TE)\A=RE
“E-NEN\AZR
3.8.2009 - 330 382011102.8.2019 2,205,000 - - - 2,205,000
ZZENEN\A=ZR “T——4)\R=A%
“E2-71EN\A=A
3.8.2009 = 330 3820120282019 2,940,000 = = = 2,940,000
“BINEN\A=R “2-_F/\A=R%
“E-nE/\A=A
21.4.2010 - 317 21420110 20.4.2020 - 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000
“E-REMAZT-R ZF——4NAZT-RZ
ZEREMACTA
2142010 - 317 21420120 20.4.2020 - 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000
“5-FENA-1-A “F-"#NA-f-RZ
ZRCREMACHA
2142010 - 317 2142013t0204.2020 - 4,800,000 - - 4,800,000
“2-REMACT-A “T-ZEMACT-HE
“RCREMACTA
10375570 12,000,000 (100,820) - 224750
Weighted average
exercise price
METEAREE HKS270%7  HKS37AT  HKI330%7T - HKS295%T
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

38. Share-Based Payments — continued

Notes:

As a result of the open offer issue of the Company on 22 August
2007, the number of share options and the exercise prices have been
adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Rule 17.03 (13) of
the Listing Rules and the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 5 September 2005.

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately preceding the
date of grant of 5 February 2004, 20 April 2004, 28 September 2005,
27 November 2007, 3 August 2009, 21 April 2010 and 10 August
2010 were HK$1.30, HK$1.48, HK$1.43, HK$6.56, HK$3.25, HK$3.15
and HK$3.71, respectively.

Each of Mr. Li Huamao and Mr. Wong Hau Yan, Helvin was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company on 5 August 2010. Share
options held by them were reclassified from the category of “employees
(other than Directors)” to “Directors’” on the same date.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, options were granted on
21 April 2010 and 10 August 2010 at the exercise price of HK$3.17
and HK$3.75 respectively. The estimated fair values of the options
granted on those dates are approximately HK$58,606,000 and
HK$15,324,000, respectively.

On 21 April 2010, 15,000,000 and 12,000,000 share options
with estimated fair values of approximately HK$32,559,000 and
HK$26,047,000 were granted to employees and other participants of
the Company, respectively. In which, 15,000,000 share options were
granted to employees of the Company conditionally subject to the
achievement of the performance targets as determined by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

On 10 August 2010, 4,000,000 and 2,000,000 share options
with estimated fair values of approximately HK$10,216,000 and
HK$5,108,000, were granted conditionally to employees and Directors
of the Company, respectively, subject to the achievement of the
performance targets as determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable period of
the share options begins.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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BURBRER ZNR-—&

W g

BAR ETRAE17.03013) (2 HERE BB S
REMBERAAR_ZZTRFAARAEL
ZIESIME BREHERTREEEN_-Z
ZELFNAT - BARRRINAHABEEET
F A7) T £ H S A o

ARABROREERLEBH _ZTTOF_A
FH ZZETEWEFMAZ-F+H ZZTTHFAN
AZ+NB ZZEZE+LF+—-A=-++tB =
ZZAFNA=ZR - ZT-ZTFWA=-+—A
RZZ—ZFEN\AT+HEAZHETES A A1.30
& JC - 1.4874 JT - 1.43% JT - 6.567 JT + 3.25/8
JL 3158 T K371 T ©

RZZ-—ZFN\AREA FTEXEERFEZR
EERARZERARANTEE NERKAF
ZEBRERABRAMER(ESHIN B EHN
DEE[EE]-

BE_ZTZ——F=ZA=+t—RHALEFEE R=_F
—TEMA-_+—BR-FT—ZTFNATAH
BREBERENTEED R A3178 T K375
T -RZEOHEEBRENGBTAFEED R
#9 /558,606,000 7% 7T & 15,324,000 7% T °

RN—_FT—ZFTFM A =+ — B 15000000
3 12,000,000 B R E(EH 2 FELDL AR
32,559,000 T 5.26,047,0007% 7T) E » Bl & F
RAAREE REMLEE - & F £15000,000
HEREDERGEHRERTFARRES  HAS
ERARRESEMENRBBE  AAEE -

RN =T —ZFF )\ A+ B 400000045 &
2,000,000 15 & % #E ({4 5+ & F 1B 4 410,216,000
7 7T 15,108,000/ 7T) B 9 Bl B & 1 1% 7 A
ARIEEBRES HEAFERAIRRESTEM
EMRBEEZE HAl{EE -

FEHANBRETEHEMAGANER-
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38.

39.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% &

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE—

Share-Based Payments — continued

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise was
HK$4.47 (2010: HK$2.98).

Share options granted to other participants are measured at
fair value of options granted as the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be estimated reliably.

These fair values were calculated using the Binomial model. The
inputs into the model for share options granted on 10 August
2010, 21 April 2010 and 3 August 2009, respectively were as
follows:

38.

B 5 ¥R & MY &

T —F=A=+—HILFE

URGO/BER ZAIR-&

RENBTEZEREM S RiTE A H
ZIEFHYRE BLILTBL(ZE—ZF:
2988 T) °

HRERRE 2 A FETER S fHE
MEMSEERHZBREDRELZE
EAFEFE-

AFEDRA-—BAARAFE - R_F—
ZENA+RH  —F— gﬁ@ﬂf+ H
RZZZAFNA=ZAREBEREZRRX
MAZEEBEWT :

10.8.2010 21.4.2010 3.8.2009

—FE—FF —E—FF —EENF

NA+H mMA=+—H ANA=H

Share price as at grant date  #% 1 B #1 2 iR & HK$3.75/8 7T HK$3.15/ 7T HK$3.2478 7T
Exercise price 1TIEE HK$3.75/%&7T HK$3.175# 7T HK$3.307 7T
Expected volatility 8 8K 1@ 66.5% 67.1% 68.20%
Remaining life TJ?%EHH 10 years ¢ 10 years4F 9 yearst
Risk-free rate £ & g 8K 2.19% 2.87% 2.24%
Expected dividend yield T8 HA e B AR 0% 0% 0%
Exercise multiple 1T 5 & 4.01 4.01 4.01-4.21
Exit rate R =R 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price before the grant date
for previous three years. The exercise multiple was to account
for the early exercise behaviour of the share options granted by
the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in comprising
the fair value of share options are based on Director’s best
estimate. The value of an option varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 March 2010, bank deposits of HK$6,726,000 (2011: Nil)
were pledged by the Group to the banks in order to secure
general banking facilities granted by the banks to the Group.
Such pledged bank deposits were released during the year.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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5 R AR N P B R 2 B R (B AR
REEYBEGGAEE  BREEET
REFEBBERITRAPHHRE -

EERN

RZE—ZFTF=ZA=Z+—H ZXEERIR
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

2

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

40. & K &8 R 5 &

iR K48 7 5T 8 4t 5K

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Contributions to mandatory provident & |1 AN iE 4 st 2 ([ FE S
fund scheme (“MPF Scheme") =& ) H 882 514
Contributions to PRC state-managed XEBEKS
pension schemes =2 H = 15,525 1,687
Amount charged to consolidated HEesr2EmliEH R
statement of comprehensive income B 2 %8 16,407 2,201

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustee. The Group now only participates in the MPF Scheme
for all employees in Hong Kong which is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the Scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are members of pension schemes operated by the Chinese
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the relevant cost of the basic payroll of
these employees to the pension schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contribution.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4= & Bt #% ¥k &

41. Operating Lease Arrangements

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

s
at

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

M EEHEZH

AEBEFEREEA
RIE R AR EARE A B2

commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- ME RERBEINHEES 2 X H
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: wm
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FA&T
Within one year —F R 1,373 1,660
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFAIF(BEREMTF
BREEA) 5 82
1,378 1,742

Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 1 to 4 years.

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments

EEocHEFHNF —E0F-

ARBRBERART BEEANEALERE

at the end of the reporting period. o
42. Commitments 42, & I
THE GROUP
rEE
2011 2010
—EB-—F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Expenditures contracted for but not EETHERNEGE T BHRE
provided in the consolidated financial A i H B & 2 FI %
statements in respect of:
Acquisition of property, plant and BAME WERZE
equipment and ponies LA K2 F5 T 20,065 -
Development expenditure of investment 7E 7 & & W) 3 2
properties under construction BERAX 657,885 460,519
Development expenditure of properties {S&E & RE R Y ¥ 2
under development for sale TRAX 729,774 172,128
Construction of hotel properties, ZIEREYE BSHe &
polo club and theme park (Note) E- NI D) - 891,978
Construction of educational facilities BiEH BRI 95,238 86,151
1,502,962 1,610,776

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

42,

43.

Commitments — continued

The Company had no significant capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period.

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement with RKEBFSHEMEXRZERLTERNEEEER
Tianjin Binhai Hi-Tech Industry Development Area of Land Resources and
Housing Management Bureau in respect of the acquisition of land use rights
held for hotel operation. In accordance with the agreement, the Group was
committed to construct hotel properties, polo club and theme park with
minimum investment of RMB550,000,000 (equivalent to HK$624,800,000).
As at 31 March 2011, the Group has reached the committed minimum
investment and the amount paid and payable for the construction of
the hotel properties, polo club and theme park was RMB1,619,565,000
(equivalent to HK$1,927,284,000) (2010: RMB281,781,000 (equivalent to
HK$320,103,000)), which has been included in the Group’s construction in
progress under property, plant and equipment and ponies.

At 31 March 2010, the capital commitments on the expenditures contracted
for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of construction of hotel properties, polo club and theme park amounting
to HK$891,978,000 (2011: Nil) were based on total contract sum of all
relevant contracts in relation to the construction of hotel properties, polo
club and theme park less the expenditures already incurred and provided in
the consolidated financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2010, the Company provided
a limited guarantee of HK$2,000,000 to a bank in respect of
credit facilities granted to a subsidiary. The aggregate amount
of such credit facilities utilised by the subsidiary at 31 March
2011 and 31 March 2010 was approximately HK$207,000 and
HK$160,000, respectively.

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
relation to the above mentioned guarantee issued by the
Company to the bank in respect of credit facility utilised by the
subsidiary as its fair value at initial recognition is considered to
be insignificant and the Directors consider that the possibility
of the default is remote. Accordingly, no value has been
recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

42.

43.

2

AE-E

AR B BRI A B KB AR AR

o

W g

HE-_Z-TF=-A=+—BLEE A&£ER
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44. Related Party Transactions

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

MBEALIRS

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the interest expenses
on Convertible Bonds due 2012 and 2014 that were paid and
payable to Goldin Group (Investment), Mr. Pan and Matsunichi
Goldbase Global amounted to approximately HK$172,675,000
(2010: HK$99,421,000).

During the year, Good Vantage Trading Limited purchased
construction materials of the Group on trust amounted to
approximately HK$16,601,000 (2010: Nil).

During the year, the Company entered into an underwriting
agreement with Goldin Equities Limited in which Mr. Pan
is the controlling shareholder, relating to an open offer of
Convertible Bonds due 2014 in the aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$4,911,339,000. Goldin Equities Limited
acted as an underwriter of the Company and had conditionally
agreed to underwrite the Convertible Bonds due 2014 pursuant
to the open offer on the terms and subject to the conditions of
the underwriting agreement. During the year ended 31 March
2011, the underwriting commission paid to Goldin Equities
Limited in relation to the open offer was approximately of
HK$61,240,000 (2010: Nil) which was capitalised in liability
component of Convertible Bonds due 2014 and expensed
off as finance costs included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the amount of HK$47,479,000 and
HK$13,761,000, respectively.

During the year, the Company entered into a loan agreement
and a supplemental agreement with Goldin Group
(Investment) in respect of a loan facility granted to the Group
at the principal amount of USD 300 million (equivalent to
HK$2,325,000,000) (the “Shareholder’s Loan”), which was
unsecured, carried interest at 8.5% per annum and repayable
on 30 June 2011. Upon the issuance of Convertible Bonds due
2014, the entire principal amount of the Shareholder’s Loan
was set off against the subscription price of the Convertible
Bonds due 2014 for which the underwriter was obligated to
pay by an equivalent principal amount of 387,500,000 units of
Convertible Bonds due 2014 underwritten by the underwriter,
which is sub-underwritten by Goldin Group (Investment). The
interest expense on the Shareholder’s Loan that was paid to
Goldin Group (Investment) amounted to approximately of
HK$47,580,000 (2010: Nil) during the year ended 31 March
2011.

Details of the Group's related parties balances are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and respective
notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

44,

Related Party Transactions— continued

Compensation of key management personne

2

MBEALIRE-E

TEEEBAE ZHM

The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows: EERFAZHEOT
2011 2010
—EB——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Short-term benefits 5 HA 4B A 40,305 32,328
Post-employment benefits % BE 1% 48 7 48 34
40,353 32,362
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EFCvMe D mFEMZERMAAMALZ
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of RELRTISELETE -

individuals and market trends.

45, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries H.TEMBRARFE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 ARAZEFEMBARAR-FT - —F=
March 2011 and 31 March 2010 are as follows: A=+ BR=ZF-—FF=A=+—H
ZEBI

Place of Paid up issued/

incorporation/ registered

registration/ ordinary

operation share capital Proportion of
Name of subsidiary w2/ BRER/ SR equity interests held by the Company Prinipal activities
it P BB HERA ARAFERERIN IEER

2011 2010
§8-F i S 3
Directly  Indirectly Direct Indirectly
B & BR Bk
Goldin Properties Group Limited Hong Kong HKS 1 100% - 100% - Provision of administrative
RRLEEEERAA & 187 senvice
REABRE
Proman Interational Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding and trading
REERERAR B 1871 of construction materials
REBRREEREMH
GuangDong Goldin Properties Ltd. PRC* 15$49,950,000 - 100% = 100%  Investment holding
BRBREHERRAT hE 49,950,000% 70 RERR
Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star PRC* RMB10,000,000 - - = 100%  Property development and
Investment Company Limited (Note )~ R * AEH investment

RREBRMEREBRRAA(E) 10,000,000 NEXERRA

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

45, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries — continued 6. ETENBARFE &

Place of Paid up issued/

incorporation/ registered

registration/ ordinary

operation share capital Proportion of
Name of subsidiary R/ HRBRT/2R equity interests held by the Company Principal activities
i PRk EEL2 EERE FOAFEREAA 1B5E

2011 2010
-&-f 3-%F

Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
Bi % B Bk

Tianjin Hi-Tech Sun Investment Company ~ PRC* RMB10,000,000 - - = 100%  Property development and
Limited (Note ¢ mE* ARE investment
AEERBARBERAD (M) 10,000,000 NERRRRE
Goldin Properties (Tianjin) Company Limited  PRC* RMB1,059,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Property development and
(formerly known as mE* ARH investment
Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property 1,059,000,000 NEERRRE
Development Company Limited) (Note c)
RENE(RR)BRA
(BRRERMERNE
REERAA) (Ko
Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin Investment PRC* RMB10,000,000 - - - 100%  Property investment
Company Limited (Note ¢) B ARE ELE
XEEFRRREARAA (M) 10,000,000
Tianjin Huading Real Estate PRC* RIMB100,000,000 - 100% = 51.28%  Property development
Company Limited mEx ARE ELE:
RREREZRRAA 100,000,000
Tianjin Goldin International Club PRC* US§144,238,000 100% - 100% - Property investment and Polo
Company Limited A 144,238,000% 1T club operation
RERGERELBERAA NERARRHEER
Zhi Chang Limited B.V.I/Hong Kong Us§1 100% - 100% - Investment holding
HEARAT EERRHE/EH B30 RERR
Fonde Hotels Group Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding and
REZFEESHERERAA B 13T provision of hotel
managements services
REBRRREEEEERS
Metropolo Hotel Management PRC 598,600,000 - 100% 100% - Hotel operation
Company (Tianjn) Limited hE* 860000050 BEEH

(formerly known as Tianjin
Goldin Technology Company Limited

ATERE(X )
BEEERARAH
(MBRERAMBEARAR)
Goldin Property Real Estate Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of sales and
Agency Limited B 1% marketing services
RRHEREERAA REHERTSREERS
Metropolo Country Club Hong Kong HKS 1 - 100% - 100%  Provision of consultancy
Management Company Limited ) 18T services on polo club
REGREELIERERAR operation
REREERREZARK
*  These companies were established in the PRC in the form of wholly- * ZRERFMINEBECERAER KL -

owned foreign enterprise.

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011 SIRMEEIRARAT F 2011
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For the year ended 31 March 2011 B EZ =T ——F=A=+—HIEFE

45, Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries — continued

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(@)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31 March
2011 or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Tiangjin Hi-Tech New Star Investment Company Limited, Tianjin Hi-
Tech Sun Investment Company Limited and Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin
Investment Company Limited have been merged with Goldin
Properties (Tianjin) Company Limited with approval from the relevant
PRC authority during the year ended 31 March 2011.

46. Non-Cash Transactions

(a

Advance from Tianjin Hi-Tech Property as at 31 March
2010, in respect of the construction and operation of the
polo club and theme park, amounting to RMB 160,000,000
(equivalent to HK$181,760,000) has been settled
against deposit paid to KEFRMEXEREELZES
Administrative Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park
included in trade and other receivables, prepayments and
deposits at the amount of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$190,400,000) during the year ended 31 March 2011.

Upon the issuance of Convertible Bonds due 2014,
the entire principal amount of the Shareholder’s
Loan amounted to USD300 million (equivalent to
HK$2,325,000,000) was set off against the subscription
price of the Convertible Bonds due 2014 for which the
underwriter was obligated to pay by an equivalent principal
amount of 387,500,000 units of Convertible Bonds due
2014 underwritten by the underwriter, which is sub-
underwritten by Goldin Group (Investment).

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

2

HEEMBELATFE &

W g

(a)

RZF——F=ZA=+—HRFAREAERH
B E A B I EEREEE S -

RARREREZER  ERIBARA ZHE
RARTEFEAKEAFEEARELE
BEEMRELEZRAR -EFER AT HE M
BRAZABESKREENITK -

BE-T——5ZAZ+-BLEE R2E
EHERABRAT REOEMRRAAR
AARREERBERRABRAANCEAN
hEE B RERRERDERATA Y -

46. FRERH

(a)

R_E-—TE=FA=1+—BHBEER
EEEHERFIEQABERREESRE
Y B A B3R A R % 160,000,000 7T
(A 181,760,000 T )R B E - T
——F=-A=+-—"BLFEUBE®L
FE W BR R R B b fE Uk ZRIE - T SR IE
EZEAMENTFTREFRMEEXE
EEEEZ B gRe AR 160,000,000
7T (#8 % 7 190,400,000 7T )18 1 o

REBEIT T NFEINH BB ESFE
R E Rz & & & £ %300,000,000
3 J0(#8 % 72,325,000,00078 7T) B &
HEEEAIMNO T —HF 38
ABRBRESFREE INHFXNEBRSE
REHEEHE(BHaREBREE)S
BHE)IZ T —NFRHHATRKES
387,500,000 & i1 2 A& &8 o

SIRMEZERAR AR F3, 2011



Financial Summary
BB E

Year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E—-—F —FT-FTF —ZTTNF —ZTINFE —ZTZTL+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FET FET FHET
RESULTS ES
Turnover R - - - 4,297,788 3,070,579
Profit before tax BB AT 234,543 1,373,801 666,260 1,157,962 212,942
Income tax (expense) PRI (FisZ)
credit e (112,619)  (444,194) 64,033 (471,312) (10,765)
Profit for the year FERE%A 121,924 929,607 730,293 686,650 202,177
At 31 March
W=A=+—8
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E——F —ZT-EFF ZZETNEF ZTTNF ZTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHT TBIT TFET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER A&
Total assets BERT 15,108,768 9,630,116 7,626,542 8,660,280 3,246,415
Total liabilities BEBRE (8,813,135) (3,832,520) (2,802,912) (4,570,878) (1,450,673)
Total equity MRS HAEE 6,295,633 5,797,596 4,823,630 4,089,402 1,795,742

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Particulars of Properties Held
BFREZYEFE

Details of the Group’s properties held as at 31 March 2011 are as

RZB-——F=A=Z=+—BAEERBEZY

follows: E- TSR
Approximate Stage of Anticipated
Location Type GFA (sq.m.) Leaseterm  completion completion date
B4
BEEER
% 5l (5K HEH TR BHTIAH
Property held for Tianjin Commercial/ 1,007,843 Medium Under construction 2016, in phases
investment RE Office ki g 1% SRR
FERBYZ AR/ BRE
Property under Tianjin Residential 709,090 Long Under construction 2011 to 2013,
development held X2 FE St g in phases
for sale —E——FZ"F
FELEC ERT —=% SRR
S
Hotel property Tianjin Hotel 58,000 Medium The main structure 2011
Nl ES RE BIE i and internal —T——F
decoration
completed
EXKEELE
RAEEE
Land included in Tianjin Commercial/ 113,400 Medium Project planning 2014
other assets RE Office ki and design —E-mF
ATARMEBE T BE/BRE EEVHIE G
1,888,333

Goldin Properties Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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